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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) (the “Directors”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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NEEH
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Corporate Information
NEEH
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overall Business of the Group in 2016

In 2016, the Group exceeded the target and its profit was
543% of 2015. The outstanding performance mainly came
from our three key products, including the “Bank-Business
Express” (integrated payment products), banking capital
products, and banking outsourcing service products, and was
complemented by the “Bank-Hospital Express” and “Bank-
School Express”.

The further deepening of structural reform in the financial
market provided ample opportunities, particularly so as banks
strengthened regulatory measures and third party payment
institutions kept enhancing marketing efforts, leading to
the significant reduction of input to the original payment
business model by the four major joint-stock banks in the
year. Nonetheless, the Group made prompt adjustments to
the output ratios and long-term development of the three key
products based on the strategy of “enhancing capital products
and expanding banking outsourcing service product mix to
introduce new integrated payment concept to users through a
dynamic business portfolio”. Hence, its businesses and long-
term development remained resilient to the market condition.

The implementation of the Bank Insolvency Act prompted the
People’s Bank to strengthen its control over the risk control
products of the sector and tighten the capital and risk control
requirements of the banking industry. Expecting continuous
enhancement and improvement of regulations in the coming
years, the Group has strategically put more efforts into the
key capital and risk control products, which led to substantial
increase in market share.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

Supported by the favourable population base, payment
products have become channel-based products (mass products)
that offer immense potential online and offline. Therefore,
market expansion remains to be the Group’s priority despite
lower profits. Driven by the structural reform in the broader
economy and continuous market adjustment, the banking
outsourcing service business has extended to nine provinces
in 2016. While the Group continued to expand the offline
markets and joined hands with various banks to initiate projects
targeting merchants and cardholders, formerly independent
businesses were gradually consolidated as they developed, and
banking outsourcing service products and payment products
were combined to form a business portfolio, which, together
with the key capital and risk control products, transformed into
a flexible business portfolio.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The banking outsourcing service products, the business
platform evolved from the Group's core operations and “Bank-
School Express” remain our main sources of big data. With
the help of these products, the Group will consolidate the big
data and the online and offline businesses to form a unique
OFFLINE TO ONLINE (020) model. We also plan to extend the
collaborative model with various banks to other commercial
banks. Meanwhile, the business portfolio will be better aligned
to the overall development of the financial environment.

Expenses of the Group continued to decline, the Group will
continue to implement stringent cost control, and strengthen
the risk control over the overall operations and individual
businesses in order to achieve a virtuous circle of identifying
new revenue streams and lowering the costs.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue of the Group comprises of:

December 2016 (“the financial
year”), the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB64,557,000, an increase of 16% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2015: approximately
RMB55,819,000).

For the year ended 31

BF %5 O R
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Revenue
=]

2016 2015
—E-AF —T—HEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARM T AR F T
Sales of software products $HE MM E M 8,717 8,494
Sales of related hardware products $H S B RARE (2 o 6,646 4,321
Provision of technical support services 1R Rl 2 % AR 7% 49,194 43,004
64,557 55,819

The increase in the turnover of the Group was mainly
attributable to the increase of 14% in the revenue of the
Group's provision of technical support services when compared
to the same period of last year. The total revenue for the year
2016 mainly came from the provision of technical support
services. The source of total revenue for the year 2016 was the
same as that for the year of 2015.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2016 is
increased by 17% to approximately RMB34,109,000 (2015:
approximately RMB29,223,000). Cost of sales increased in line
with business activities. The Group’s gross profit margin was
47% (2015: 48%) which remained stable. The Group has been
implementing the strict cost control and making the best efforts
to keep the current gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2016 is decreased by 13% to approximately RMB11,106,000
(2015: approximately RMB12,707,000).
administrative expenses was mainly due to decreased in share

The decrease in

options expenses were recognised when compared to the
same period of last year. Other administrative expenses do
not have significant change due to our effective cost control
measures. Distribution and selling expenses was approximately
RMB9,162,000, not much movement when compared to the
same period of last year (2015: approximately RMB8,564,000).
Other income mainly included refund of value added tax,
refund of personal income tax and interest income; and other
gains and losses mainly included exchange differences and fair
value changes in investment fund.

Research and development expenses for the year ended
31 December 2016 is decreased by 16% to approximately
RMB7,090,000 (2015: approximately RMB8,423,000). The
decrease in research and development expenses was mainly due
to our effective cost control measures.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB998,000, not much movement when
compared to the same period of last year (2015: approximately
RMB1,028,000).

The Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB7,028,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016,
substantial improvement of the results of the Group as

represented a

compared to the profit of approximately RMB1,294,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015. Increase in revenue and our
effective cost control measures are the main factors leading to
the profit increased.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
recorded equity-settled share-based payment of approximately
RMB810,000 (2015: approximately RMB3,302,000). The equity-
settled share-based payment for the year ended 31 December
2016 was allocated between the cost of sales, distribution
and selling expenses and administrative expenses amounted to
RMB151,000, RMB129,000 and RMB530,000 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2016
is increased by 62% to approximately RMB1,916,000 (2015:
approximately RMB1,181,000). Increase in profit before tax is
the main factors leading to the income tax expense increased.
Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was established
in Hangzhou, PRC, is regarded as a High and New Technology
Enterprise and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential tax rate
for PRC enterprise income tax.

As the Group implemented effective receivables management
strategy and sound control system to prevent bad debts, it
recorded no impairment loss on trade receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: impairment loss on trade
receivables amounted to approximately RMB1,962,000). For the
year ended 31 December 2016, reversal of impairment on trade
receivables amounted to approximately RMB440,000 (2015:
approximately RMB1,461,000). The Group adopted legal and
appropriate measures to collect debts and reduce loss through,
amongst others, phone calls, facsimile, letters, visits, interviews,
as well as legal actions as the final resort. The Group will also
actively improve its receivables collection policy to enhance cash
flows.

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly the Group's
buildings, leasehold improvements, computer and related
equipment and motor vehicles. Decrease of 9% is mainly
attributable to current year depreciation.

Intangible assets comprise mainly the Group’s capitalized
development costs. The development costs represents an online
platform developed internally in promoting business of its
business customers. Decrease of 17% is mainly attributable to
current year amortization.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Trade receivables increased in line with business activities
during the fourth quarter of current year. During the year
under review, the trade receivables turnover (the average of
the trade receivables balance at the beginning and the end
of the year divided by the total revenue of the year times 365
days) increased by 37 days to 161 days (2015: 124 days). The
Group’s customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120 — 180 days. The Group is comfortable with
the quality of the receivables and will continue to exercise due
care in managing the credit exposure.

Trade payables increased in line with more purchases activities
during the fourth quarter of current year.

Borrowings amounted to approximately RMB56,082,000 as at
31 December 2016 (2015: approximately RMB48,600,000),
representing an increase of 15%, which is mainly attributable
to additional loans from bank and a director during the year.
The borrowings would be used for general corporate purposes
including working capital.

We will continue striving our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control measures. With the products of our
Group becoming more mature in the market and the effective
cost control, we expect that financial results of the group
would be further improved in the coming year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

The operating expenditures of the Group are funded by cash
flow from operations, internal liquidity and loans from bank
and a director. The Group has adequate sources of funds to
meet its future working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK
dollars, amounted to approximately RMB23,186,000 (2015:
approximately RMB18,901,000). The Group's current ratio,
based on total current assets over total current liabilities,
as at 31 December 2016 was approximately 3 times (2015:
approximately 2 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s loans from a director of
approximately RMB50,090,000, which bear interest at 3.25%
— 3.5% per annum (2015: approximately RMB43,164,000,
which bear interest rate of 0% - 3.5% per annum). Loans
from a director had fixed interest rate and were unsecured.
Loans from a director approximately RMB43,900,000 (2015:
RMB36,974,000) are denominated in HK dollars, others are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group

entity.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB5,992,000 (2015:
approximately RMB5,436,000), of which approximately
RMB4,000,000 (2015: approximately RMB3,000,000) were
unsecured and interest bearing at 0.402% per month, and
balances of approximately RMB1,992,000 (2015: approximately
RMB2,436,000) were unsecured and interest bearing at Base
Rate in the PRC plus 15%. Bank borrowings are denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entity.

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the year (2015:
Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2016 was approximately 96%
(2015: 108%). The gearing ratio improvement is the result of
very disciplined and focused management over working capital.
The Group remains confident that gearing ratio can further
improve going forward.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, there was no change to the share capital of
the Company. As at 31 December 2016, the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company was 864,430,000 shares
(2015: 864,430,000 shares).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year. In
year 2015, the Group de-registered a sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC, Singlee Zhuhai.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types
of risk within the organisation and the external environment
with active management participation and effective internal
control procedures in the best interest of the Group and its
shareholders.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group's revenue segmented on types of goods or services
delivered or provided:

a) Sales of software products
b) Sales of related hardware products
c)  Provision of technical support services

For the year ended 31 December 2016, provision of technical
support services remained the principal source of revenue of
the Group. This services revenue accounted for 76% (2015:
77%) of Group revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
provision of technical support services revenue and sales of
related hardware products revenue increase of 14% and 54%
respectively as compared to the year ended 31 December 2015.
Increase in contracts is the main factor leading to the revenue
increased. Sales of software products revenue slightly increased
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Segment results grew 93% to approximately RMB11,848,000
(2015: approximately RMB6,148,000) mainly due to operational
efficiency.

Details of segmental information are presented for the Group
as disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 357 employees
(2015: 270 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB20,699,000 (2015:
approximately RMB25,496,000).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the “Report of the Directors”.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets (2015: Nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group's future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”

respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The Directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The
Group adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It
implements green office practices such as make use of water
efficiently, double-sided printing and copying, setting up
recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and
electrical appliance. The Group is also using office equipment
carrying Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department which save energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of the Group's
businesses to move towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle
and Reuse and enhance environmental sustainability.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of the places in which the Group operates that
which has significant impact on the business operations of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWRE DM

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that employees are our valuable
assets. Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business update with them when
appropriate. During the Year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners
or bank enterprises.

The Group collaborates with responsible suppliers to provide
quality goods with competitive pricing. To this end, the Group
implements policies on supply chain management to ensure
fair suppliers selection procedures. The suppliers should fulfill
the requirements in the supplier screening procedures and the
Group’s experienced employees ensure those goods received
from the suppliers meet the Group's expectation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects
ability to meet business objectives arising from the movement
in market prices, like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

The Group's assets and liabilities were denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"), in view of the potential HKD and USD exchange rate
fluctuation the Group undertake foreign exchange rate risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure when the need arises.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, the Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and
considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when
appropriate, through variety of means.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from fluctuation in market prices of
the Group’s investment in financial assets. The investment
portfolio is frequently reviewed and monitored by our senior
management to ensure prompt action taken and the loss
arising from the changes in the market values is capped within
an acceptable range.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWRE DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due because of an inability
to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing
liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flows and maintains an
adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability
to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard
operating procedures, limits of authority and reporting
framework. Our management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of the
Group would be submitted to the Board.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract
and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group’s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions, performance of property markets in regions where
our investments locate, the performance of the fund managers
for our invested funds, which would not be mitigated even with
careful and prudent investment strategy and strict procedure.

Cyber Attack and Security Risk

The Group could be impacted negatively if it sustains cyber-
attacks and other data security breaches that disrupt its
operations or damage its reputation. For example, various
information and sensitive or confidential data relating to its
operations may be subject to attack from hackers and other
malicious software programs that attempt to exploit any
security vulnerability in its system; Sophisticated software and
applications that it produces may contain “bugs” that could
unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the system or may
present unidentified security risk; Misappropriation of sensitive
or confidential data about its customers could lead the Group
to loss of reputation, and exposure to potential litigation and
liability. The Group will continue to enhance IT security and
security information awareness and comply with mandatory
privacy and security standards and protocols imposed by law,
regulation, industry standards, or contractual obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWRE DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)

TERBREAABRRE (&)

Intellectual Property Risk 5 E RE B B
The Group could suffer if it does not develop and protect its fHERNEB N RESEMBEE  JELES
own intellectual property. The Group will take full advantage of #5& ZE|F £ NEE BB R BRI Z FE
legal protections by applying for softward copyright. RIE D FAERRE -
PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS FERNATR
Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” for a discussion on B HRELXH [T HEREE] PHTH-
this.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE hEFENMBEHE
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF —Z-nf —E2-mF —Z-=F —E-CF
+=ZA=t+-B fzZA=t-B +zZA=+-8 +zZA=+-8 +ZA=1+-H
ILEE ItFE ItFE tEE tFE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT
Revenue HEWA 64,557 55,819 48,908 33,364 36,080
Profit (loss) attributable BREGEH (EE)
to shareholders 7,028 1,294 571 (18,203) (11,334)
Total assets BESE 75,030 56,131 42,004 29,730 44,736
Total liabilities RELE (11,772) (60,711) (53,574) (42,471) (44,002)
Net assets (liabilities) BE(BE)FE 3,258 (4,580) (11,570) (12,741) 734
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERBCERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

aged 72, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr.

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai,

Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music,
is also among the founders of the Group. He is in possession
of more than 30 years’ company management and strategy
programming experience and over 20 years' successful
experience in managing high-tech companies; hence he is
familiar with the China business management and marketing
planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group's macro-

strategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 63, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he
used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research
Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application
Research Institute as director and president of their Developing
Departments.

Mr. Hung Ying, aged 47, a Director of our Group, had been
the deputy general manager of Hangzhou Singlee Technology
Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd of the Group
from April 2007 to April 2011.
had worked as the marketing director and general manager in

Prior to joining the Group, he

Beijing San Ding Ti Lian Network Technology Company Limited
from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Hung graduated in
information, social and management sciences (majoring in
business administration) from University of Paisley and obtained
an EMBA from Peking University. Mr. Hung has several years
of experiences in management, and is specialized in market
planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son of Mr. Hung Yung Lai,

the chairman and executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEZREBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, Jp, aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the company in
December 2003. He had been actively serving on government
policy and executive bodies, including those relating to town
planning, urban renewal, public housing and environment
matters for 24 years. He has been appointed as a Justice of the
Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban councilor.
He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human Settlements
Planning and Development from the Asian Institute of
Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one
of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983.
Mr. Pao is a Hon. Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing.
He is an independent non-executive director of Oriental
Press Group Limited, Capital Environmental Holdings Limited,
Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Zhuzhou CSR Times Electric Co., Ltd.), Soundwill Holdings
Limited, Maoye International Holdings Limited, InvesTech
Holdings Limited (formerly known as HL Technology Group
Limited) and Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as JC Group Holdings Limited), all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of InvesTech Holdings Limited after the
conclusion of its annual general meeting held on 27 May 2016.
He resign from the post of independent non-executive director
of Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited with effect
from 13 March 2017.

Mr. Thomas Tam (formerly known as Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing),
aged 69, an independent non-executive director of the Group,
is the fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was the founding partner of Wongs
& Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public accounting firm
in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a consultant of the
accounting firm. He is also an independent non-executive
director of InvesTech Holdings Limited (formerly known as HL
Technology Group Limited). He ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of InvesTech Holdings Limited after the
conclusion of its annual general meeting held on 27 May 2016.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERBCERE

Mr. Lo, King Man, JesBs,BBs, aged 79, an independent non-
executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in
academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong
Academy for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of
Peace in Hong Kong, and he has an extensive record of public
service. He has also served on the governing or executive
bodies of numerous educational and cultural organizations. He
was appointed as independent non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holding Int'l Ltd. in September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Kehan Xu, aged 44, Chairman Adviser of Singlee Software,
leads the econometric modeling and data analytics of this
Group. Dr. Xu is the co-founder & Managing Director of
Dawnrays Biotech Capital (Asia) Limited. Dr. Xu has been served
as the CFO and Executive Director of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (2348 HK). Dr. Xu has been served as the
executive vice president and CFO of Singlee Software (Group)
Limited (8076 HK).

Kehan received a PhD in strategy from Mays Business School
at Texas A&M University, a DBA from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and a MBA (Investments) from University of Miami.
Dr. Xu publishes on top tier academic journals (Financial Times
50). His research interests include entrepreneurship, behavioral
decision-making, brand portfolio, management accounting,
multivariate analyses of performance of financial traders, and
IT-enabled decision-making mechanisms. Dr. Xu presents his
cutting-edge econometrical models in the global conferences.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEZREBE

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong is the member
of the Anxi County, Fujian Province Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Tong is also
the vice chairman of the Youth Committee of the Hong Kong
Quanzhou Clans United Association and director of the An
Kwei Clans Association (H.K.) Limited. He is External Advisor of
the Department of Accountancy and Law of Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is the Audit Committee member and Education
Committee member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Tong holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree in Finance from University of Southern Queensland. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tong is
a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He joined the Group in
June 2007. He has accumulated over ten years of accounting,
auditing and corporate financing experiences. He is now
responsible for accounting, corporate financing and company
secretarial duties.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to the
profit from operation by principal activities and geographical
area of operations for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS
The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on

page 89.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including
a fair review of the business, a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year 2016, an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, disclosures relating to
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, and
relationships with major stakeholders can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections of this annual report.

Throughout 2016, there was no incidence of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group’s business.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
5 May 2017 to 11 May 2017, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
11 May 2017 (the "AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 4 May 2017.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 20
of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 91 and page 172
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company's share capital and share options
scheme are set out in note 23 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2016, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company (2015: Nil).

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

ERi]
FRAAEERARB 2 HEEESSFED R
FONENEIT2E -

THE - BMERKRE

ARBENTBE B R 2
A B RE N3 -

EACRE%S

RS K 38 I

AR ARBRESZFBDAENGZE
SRR M sE23 %24 »

BrLEERE

ARBZAFRAMARBREEMLEREARR
FIARBAARRZIH R PR EHR 2 B LB
BRZBE-

AR 3R

BEABREQE(—AN—F) AAFRK
HaEBAHEETRRE - R_ZT—XE+=A
=+ —B AABEEAHIRETREZHE
(ZE—hF |\)-

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT

27



Report of the Directors

EEWRES

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2016 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
35% (2015: 24%)
70% (2015: 40%)

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

Sales

— the largest customer 27% (2015: 27%)
— five largest customers combined 66% (2015: 60%)
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the company’s share capital) had an interest in the major

suppliers or customers stated above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2016, shareholders (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any
other members of the Group or substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

(b)

FERRREMALTRREG HERSD

RiEERBRRKR (&)

(=) ARABREEIEBTZEER

Number of shares held

BERGHA
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding
BRREHE 51,/ g "R HKE BEREKESH
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 33.30%
EnBEAA (note 1)
(Htet1)
Great Song Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 33.30%
BB A (notes 1 and 2)
(Hret1k2)
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
AERIB A FEER (notes 2 and 4)
(HiiF2k4)
Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.85%
EmEAA
Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
THRZ T EEER (notes 2 and 3)
(HiF2k3)
Mdm lu Pun Family interest 368,880,000 - 42.67%
ki =z £ XEER (note 5)
(HfiE5)
Share options (=) BRE
Number of
Capacity/ Number of underlying
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held shares
BREEZR 54, EmER BFEZEREHA HERGOGHE
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 65,000,000 65,000,000
ARENIE K A& EmEAA
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Great Song
Enterprises Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one third of the
voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei Ling is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by
Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power of
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by virtue of the
SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited as
mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed to be
interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial
Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to
be interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or
taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO. She is also deemed to
be interested in the 65,000,000 share options and the 16,025,000 shares
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai as mentioned in Note 4 above for
the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group or any other
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or which were required to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EERFTETHRAERRND - HERS
REEIEZEGRKXR

RZB—RF+ZA=+—HB ARARESRIT
HABHENAARSH M AR EZE (EER
BHEREEGOEXVE (BB ERIES71E) )
ZAEMEBR G - BB RGO REEERE EAIRE
FBHERABBROIEXVEETRESD HAME A
REI BRIz EEIAR (REREREE
AR ERINZEFBRXEREREEERERTD
=R E)  RIRIEFF KBS KRHOIFE 35215
BAERRARREFEHELMKERIEAER
LR AIZES 4825676 BME A QA KA
FTeEss MAR T :

RKAT KA :

all

Number of shares held

EERHOEE
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEEE B RE=ER Sy KE BEREAESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
REENIE A EE R (note 1)
(Hiat1)
Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.85%
EnlEA A
Mr. Hung Ying Beneficial owner 8,040,000 - 0.93%
2 e EnlEA A
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Shares in associated corporation:

EEREIRITHAERR®D - HE KRG
REERBRRKXR (&)

HEBEE R

Number of ordinary
shares held in Goldcorp

Industrial Limited

(note 2)
M Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FEEBERYE
(Biat2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng B3 @ ER WA KE BFERFTBEISH
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 1 - 50%
RREIR SR EnEEA
Notes: Wist -

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai has
50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2016 composed of 2 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date and have come to its
expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted
under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, a new share
option scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
"New Scheme"), take effect immediately after the expiry of the
Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are same with
the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 28
February 2011 (the “SGM"), the Scheme mandate limit was
refreshed so that the Company was authorized to grant share
options under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a
total of 81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
SGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 May
2016 (the "AGM"), the scheme mandate limit under the share
option scheme of the Company was refreshed again so that
the Company was authorized to grant additional share options
for subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the
refreshed mandate limit, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
AGM. The aggregate number of Shares which is issued upon
exercise of all Options that is granted under the Refreshed
Mandate Limit and upon exercise of the outstanding Options
previously granted under the Old Share Option Scheme and
the Share Option Scheme is 223,173,000 Shares, representing
approximately 25.82% of the shares in issue as at the Latest
Practicable Date (30 March 2016) which does not exceed the
30% limit stipulated under Note (2) to Rule 23.03(3) of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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EEWRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the Board of
Directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the Board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted.

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.84 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant of
share options to Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share
to its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were
at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The grant of share options to its
employees of the Company and the specific mandate to allot,
issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon conversion
of the foregoing share options were approved by the SGM held
on 28 February 2011.

On 24 June 2013, the Company granted 59,780,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.1122 per
share to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.101 immediately
before the day on which options were granted.

On 15 May 2015, the Company granted 21,400,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.43 per share
to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price of HK$0.43 immediately before
the day on which options were granted.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The summary details of options granted are as follows:

BRETE (&

BRECHEFBOT

)

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period as at 1 January 2016 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2016
RZ8-AE RZ8-AE
-fA-A tZA=+-A
R AR Brefk BREHE BREAR AT
BSREEGNERNE  RH BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR
Continuous contract 9 April 2008 to 17,760,000 - - - (1,850,000) 15,910,000
employees (other than 8 October 2017
directors)
REANEE(EER)) -ZENEBAANEER
ZE-tETANR
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
BRR ZE-FELATNRE
“ECRE-ATAR
Thomas Tam (formerly known 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
as Tam Kwok Hing) 18 January 2020
HEE ZE-FELATNAE
ZRCRE-RTI\R
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
ERX ZZ-RELATNER
“ERE-FTAR
Hung Ying 19 July 2010 to 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18 January 2020
i ZE-FELATNRE
“ECRE-ATAR
Continuous contract 19 July 2010 to 4,080,000 - - - (700,000) 3,380,000
employees (other than 18 January 2020
directors)
REANES (B3R  —2-EZELATABRE
“ECRE-ATNR
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 1,550,000 - - - - 1,550,000

ak
e

15 August 2020
I ANAES
“TCRENATRA
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

BIRERTE (&

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period as at 1 January 2016 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2016
i i
-A-A tzA=1-A
AR Bk Brefk BNEmE BREEH AR
BERRRANERRE  ffH BRE%E ERE%E BRE%E BRE%A ERE%A BRE%E
Continuous contract 16 February 2011 to 1,430,000 - - - (620,000) 810,000
employees (other than 15 August 2020
directors)
REANES (B3R —E2--FCAtrEE
“ECRE)NATERA
Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 65,000,000 - - - - 65,000,000
9 January 2021
RRE It s S WIVES
ZRZ-5-ANA
Continuous contract 28 February 2011 to 12,970,000 - - - (680,000) 12,290,000
employees (other than 12 January 2021
directors)
FRAOEE(EERN)  —EF--5CA-T)\EZ
ZB-E-BTZH
Hung Ying 24 June 2013 1o 40,000 - - - - 40,000
23 June 2023
it 4 F-Z§/AZTNAZ
ZEIZERAZTEH
Continuous contract 24 June 2013 10 8,200,000 - - - (1,000,000) 7,200,000
employees (other than 23 June 2023
directors)
BEANEE(EERN)  I-ZERBC-TREZ
ZEIZERAZTEH
Hung Ying 15 May 2015 to 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000
14 May 2025
it ZE-1FIATRAZ
ZE-RERATIA
Continuous contract 15 May 2015 to 19,500,000 - - - (1,650,000) 17,850,000
employees (other than 14 May 2025
directors)
REANES (B3R —E2-LFRATIAZ
ZE-RERATNA
136,730,000 - - - (6,500,000) 130,230,000
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interest and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures” below and the
share option scheme disclosures in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
company granted to any director or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or the Company’s
subsidiary or holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s
holding company or a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the Directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2016 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and
who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates, as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during year ended 31
December 2016.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on page 43 to
page 81 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January
2016 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Cui Jian

Hung Ying

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pao Ping Wing

Thomas Tam (formerly known as Tam Kwok Hing)
Lo King Man

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Hung Ying and Mr. Lo King Man will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and
Mr. Lo King Man and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 24
of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in note 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements. During year 2016,
renewed tenancy agreement was entered into between
the Company as tenant and related company, Sing Lee
Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., Limited, as landlord.
The transactions contemplated under the renewed tenancy
agreements constitute continuing connected transactions
(CCTs) of the Group pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.29. The
CCTs are exempted from the reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.74.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for legal actions brought against the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration

of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

AUDITOR ZELEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 HE-ZT—AFE+-_A=+—HIFEZHA
December 2016 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu BIFEIMAKEE e I TR H @ tAIITER &
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- W¥EMEELFTEERERBE(T-
appointment.

All references above to other sections or reports in this annual |+ XI2 M RARF R E b Z &R E - B

report form part of this report. WER—F Do

On behalf of the Board REESFE

Hung Yung Lai +E

Chairman REmL 8

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017 B ZE—+tF=-A=Z+=H
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Corporate Governance Report

TEEARES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

Saved as disclosed below, the Company complied with the code
provisions in Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and
Corporate Governance Report which set out in Appendix 15
in the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2016. The Company periodically reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure its continuous compliance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2016 as set out in GEM Listing Rules
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
the securities transactions by Directors.

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report
PrEAREE

B /A =
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors of the Company comprises:

Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai

Cui Jian
Hung Ying
Independent Non-executive Pao Ping Wing
Directors Thomas Tam
Lo King Man

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group at each
period end and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
providing with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring
that all Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman
on governance matters. All directors have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company secretary keeps minutes of all meetings which are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Directors. The Company Secretary also plays an
essential role in the relationship between the Company and its
shareholders, including assisting the Board in discharging its
obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEEARES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the
Board has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice upon reasonable request
under appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by
the Company.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Company considers such directors
to be independent in accordance with each and the various
guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group’s
business, the Board considered that the directors have a
balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance to
indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities incurred by
them in discharging their duties. The increase coverage for the
Directors is reviewed on an annual basis. Throughout the year,
no claim had been made against the Directors of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the
Listing Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one
another in all aspects, including finance, family and business.

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

E=g(#E)

RMPHEZTHNTRG EFQCEIEN RE
EERBAEERBVEEBERATASREBY
EXER - YHARRAEEHER-

BEMIFATEENEHHZTERREA RS
M4 °

A ST B AR £ A Z85.05A - 5.05(1) &(2)
B ARRBEFT=ZBIIIENTES (HES
g=H2— Mi)ﬂﬁ$39*%ﬂﬁ@%z
AR HAEBVBEEER - AAQF

BEEBUIFNTESHRELE EZiﬁé
%'WKAumﬁ'ﬁEﬂﬁmtmﬁM%Sw
BTz S ETRES  ZEEEHIBE L -

BENSATEFMIFATEFTRER I TRAL
BEAEEZEBULE EFZGRR/TEFNAE
SEZRERLERERTHNGEE 2 -

ARFEREFLZHEZTEERE UARER
FRETEZBEMSIEZBEEE-EFZ
ARBE SN S FETRE - NEEAFE - K
NRAEFUEEBEARE-

ARFERVUIRAHZES REZEEEFE
BEFEEBILATESTNE LI RER
BENALMRUEABLMEZATE-EFE
EXREEZSTHEREME KEMERER L
BERE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT

45



46

Corporate Governance Report

AL A i S/
TEERBRES

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is
subject to his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM
upon retirement. The articles of association of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting and (ii) as an addition to the
Board shall hold office until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management
where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS EERIRZE (&)
(Cont’d)
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors W - ZE— X NFE+-_A=+—HEE =24
participated in the following trainings: LAT 53 -
Type of
Trainings
ek Eaball
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERIAS ST A4 A, B
Bz
Mr. Cui Jian ERSLAE A, B
Bz
Mr. Hung Ying AR E A, B
Bz
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR SR 5 A A, B
Bz
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE A A, B
Rz
Mr. Lo King Man EsXEAE A, B
Bz
A:  Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties B: MREANREFBECLEELEHE

B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general 7 : MEABLE —REKKEERESCHE TR
business or directors’ duties etc. BHER
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam
Fai, no replacement of the post of the chief executive officer
has been fixed as at 31 December 2016. The Board will keep
reviewing the current structure from time to time. If candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is identified,
the Company will make appointment to fill the post of chief
executive officer as appropriate.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and
the audit and risk management committees, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are posted on the GEM's website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.com.
cn. All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting

meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings.
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TEEARES

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont’d)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Code which included
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company's
compliance with the code provision in the Code and disclosures
in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November
2005. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing,
and other members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Thomas
Tam and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of
the Remuneration committee which have been revised effective
on 26 March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set
out in the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM
website and the Company’s website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The remuneration committee has considered and reviewed the

remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management and consider that are fair and reasonable.
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TEEBRRES

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
other members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam
and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the
nomination committee which have been made effective on 26
March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set out in
the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’'s corporate strategy;
identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors;
make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of an succession planning for directors; assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors;
formulate and review the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the

policy.

The nomination committee considered the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company's
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates of directorship. The nomination committee
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The audit and risk management committee was established in
August 2001. The chairman of the audit and risk management
committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and other members include Mr.
Thomas Tam and Mr. Lo King Man, all of them are independent
non-executive directors. The written terms of reference of
the audit and risk management committee which have been
revised effective on 21 March 2016 to comply with the new
requirement set out in the revised code provision are posted on
the GEM website and the Company’s website.
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TEERBES

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

The primary duties of the audit and risk management
committee are mainly to review the financial information,
oversight of financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems, audit plan and relationship with
external auditors and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules in that at least one of the members of the audit and risk
management committee (which must comprise a minimum of
three members and must be chaired by an Independent-non
executive director) is an independent non-executive director
who possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting related financial management expertise.

Review of financial results

The audit and risk management committee reviewed the
2016 Consolidated Financial Statements in conjunction with
external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with
management, the audit and risk management committee
was satisfied that the Consolidated Financial Statements
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and fairly present the Group's financial position
and results for the year ended 31 December 2016. The audit
and risk management committee therefore recommended
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31

December 2016 be approved by the Board.
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TEEBRRES

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

Review of risk management and internal control systems

The audit and risk management committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's policies and procedures regarding
internal control systems (including financial, operational, IT, risk
management, information security, legal, compliance and those
controls designed to detect material fraud) by reviewing the
work of the Internal audit department and the Group's external
auditor, and regular reports from management including those
on risk management, regulatory compliance and legal matters.

The audit and risk management committee reviewed and
concurred with the management’s confirmation that for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were effective with reference to
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) principles. The management’s confirmation was
endorsed by the audit and risk management committee and
submitted to the Board.

Review of accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions

The audit and risk management committee reviewed and was
satisfied with the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.
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TEEARES

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY BEEENEZTILBER

The Company has had policy of diversity in board appointments AR B —HETZT/bERE MBRERKE S
as reflected in the current composition of the Board which is @/BEE - WM TR EEERERNE &
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in 2ESNR&HIE EEZTEEFE:

terms of nationality, professional background and experience,

as shown in the following illustrations:

A Role of directors A EEAG
Executive Directors HWITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAUITES

@ Executive Directors

WITES

® Independent
Non-Executive Directors

BIFRITES
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B /A =
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont’d)
B  Nationality

Hong Kong, China
China

* Nationality is based on passport, and does not necessarily reflect ethnic origin.

C Professional background

Business
Computer and information technology

Human settlements planning and development

Accounting & Auditing
Education and cultural development
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BHRPHRAR

@ Human settlements planning
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Accounting and Auditing
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Education and cultural development
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TEEARES

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont’d)
D Age

45-54
55-64
65-74
75-84

We believe that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group
thinking. We recognise that board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. The objectives of this Policy are, with the support of
our shareholders, to have a Board which:

a) is characterised by a broad range of views arising from
different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions;
and

¢) has sustainable development as its core value,
and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders,

particularly the long-term interests of our shareholders, fairly
and effectively.

EEERES LXK (&)
D iR
1
1
3
1
@ 45-54
@ 55-64
® 6574
75-84
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AL A i S/
TEERBREE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd)

For the purpose of this Policy, we considers the concept of
diversity incorporates a number of different aspects, such
as professional experiences, business perspectives, skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity and length of service. The achievement of these
objectives is measurable on an objective review by shareholders
of the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of
background and experience of individual directors and the
effectiveness of the Board in promoting shareholders’ interests.

In order for shareholders to judge for themselves whether
the Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a
gradual move to increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed
which they support, we shall continue to provide sufficient
information to shareholders about the size, qualifications,
characteristics etc. of each individual Board member and
therefore, the Board as a whole.

The nomination committee has been charged with the
review of the Board Diversity Policy on a periodic basis. The
nomination committee believes that the approach of review of
the Policy may take the form of an analysis of the Board in the
different aspects of diversity as set out above having regard to
the sustainable development of the Company, supplemented
with shareholders’ feedback on the diversity of the Board and
its overall effectiveness in promoting shareholders” interests.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS SR HERLE

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, JTEEFRHEZE_ZT—"F+_A=+—HIF
Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings, EHFEEEg¢exn ERNMNAKRERZES S
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee % HFWZE e @ENIEREZE8 R 20k
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in ﬁﬁé?% :

the following table:

Audit and Risk
Management  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EUR
Bz AREE FMZERS REZRE
Directors EZ EE ZEgER g3 EE
Number of meetings held ERETRY 5 5 1 1
Number of meetings attended/ SRENENE/
Number of meetings held BERITRE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai i 5/5 - 171 171
Mr. Cui Jian ERRE 5/5 - - -
Mr. Hung Ying RELE 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRRLE 5/5 5/5 /1 171
Mr. Thomas Tam HERLE 5/5 5/5 N N
Mr. Lo King Man BEXEE 5/5 5/5 17 17
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit services provided by the
independent auditor to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted approximately HK$588,000 (2015:
HK$560,000). No other significant fee was incurred for non-
audit services during the year (2015: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the company and its subsidiaries, in
accordance with accounting principle generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation
of the financial statements and the auditor’'s responsibilities
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including ESG-
related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems (including those
for ESG-related risks) and reviewing their effectiveness to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.
To this end, management continues to allocate resources for
internal control and risk management systems compatible with
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework
2013 principles to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management

At the Group, risk is defined as a potential action, event or
circumstance that could impact the Company’s ability, favorably
or unfavorably, to meet its strategic goals.

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in
which it operates. The aim is to identify risks and then manage
them so that they can be understood, reduced, mitigated,
transferred or avoided. This demands a proactive approach to
risk management and an effective group-wide risk management
framework.

Risk governance structure
The Group's risk governance structure is based on a “Three

Lines of Defence” model, with oversight and directions from
the Board and Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee E#Z R EREEZES

The Management B2 &
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E—EhF

Operational Management
and internal Controls
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(Risk Ownership)
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Risk Management
Functions
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(Risk Control)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

R EERRIBEE (£)

(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d) ARER (&

Risk governance structure (Cont’d) EBREREE (EF)
Roles Functions =) 4
The Board e Has overall responsibility for the risk Exg .

management and internal control systems.

Oversees the actions of the Management
and monitors the overall effectiveness of the
risk management system and internal control
function.

Oversees and reviews processes and controls
for strategic and operational risk and monitors
the effectiveness of the established controls
through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

HEREELABEZRSR
AERERME-

EERERTTARERAR
EEANDPEERENER
Bt

EERETERLEERR
BFREHER AREBS
EURAREEZEERE
REAEHEROBRIE -

Audit and Risk
Management
Committee

Supports the Board in monitoring the
performance of the risk management system
and key risks and internal control systems.

Reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function.

Reviews risks raised during annual risk
registration exercise, and other risks and

concerns.

Approves Company's risk tolerance.
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TEEARES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

BB EERAIREE (£)

(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont'd) BREE (£)
Risk governance structure (Cont’d) EBREREE (EF)
Roles Functions At 4
Audit and Risk o Evaluate and determine the nature and extent ERRER o HNEFSEBEHALEEAR
Management of the risks the Board is ready to endorse for EEZEE ERFBREEmMAENR
Committee the Group to take in pursuing the delivery of (&) G ETHERETEER
(Cont'd) the Group's strategic objectives. BEMEEMEE -

o Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk o HBRARBERRULERS—
management and internal control systems is EEENERARBEER
established and maintained by the Group. MEE R R 4T o

o Oversee the Management in the design, o EEEEEHERBEERA
implementation and monitoring of the risk BEZFZGNRH EHER
management and internal control systems. ERFEMIfE-

o Oversee the Management in their risk o EEEEELRRRSEFE
mitigation efforts. f)THE-

Internal Audit o Independent investigations regarding certain NEE % o HETEFTARERAS
allegations of fraud and violations of the BT RERARE DR R
Group's Code of Conduct and other company RETBUAS-
policies.

o Carries out the analysis and independent o HAEEMERERRAH
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness ERRRRBRANBME
of the Group's risk management and internal BT BB LT
control systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

R EERRIBEE (£)

Risk Management (Cont’d) ARER (&
Risk governance structure (Cont’d) EBREREE (EF)
Roles Functions At 4
The Management o Provide leadership and guidance for the EEE o BiEkRH i&zf‘iﬁx Ty

balance of risk and return.

e Designs, implements and reviews the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

e Communicate and assess the Group's risk
profile and material risks at the Group level.

e Track progress of mitigation plans of material
risks and report on detailed examinations of
specific risks as required.

e Oversee business units as well as group risk
and the control activities relevant to respective
functions.

e Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control
systems has been conducted at least annually
and provide such confirmation to the Board
through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

£2[o]
REEEERE

o R BREELRAKER
RREERABEZRS -

o RAKEMERKIMEX
BB ETRR R

o BUHATERERFEHE
MEE TREZERRET
J_UZME’]P$%E RBHER

. EEEEER EEAR M
RESBESARE L ER
EH-

o BRELSEFRA-RAR
EERANBERRHH K
M YEBELRARERE
ZEENEFEFHARRE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)

Risk governance structure (Cont’d)

The Management, which co-ordinates enterprise risk
management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk
management for the Group, reports to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting,
including amongst other things, significant risks of the Group
and the appropriate mitigation and/or transfer of identified
risks. The operating units of the Group, as risk owners, identify,
evaluate, mitigate and monitor their own risks, and report such
risk management activities to the Management on a regularly
basis. The Management assesses and presents regular reports

to Audit and Risk Management Committee at each regularly
scheduled meeting.

The Management and employees have evaluated control
environment and conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, both at the entity level and the various processes/
transactions levels. We have documented those processes
which are critical to the Group's performance. Within this
exercise, key risks have been identified, along with the controls
required to mitigate those risks, after which, such key risks
and controls are continually reviewed and updated on an
annual basis. High-risk key controls are tested annually by
our management and internal audit. Based on the results of
those tests, process owners are able to represent to Senior
Management that their internal controls are working as
intended or that necessary corrections have been made where
control weaknesses have been found. Internal auditors report
to Audit and Risk Management Committee that controls have
been working properly or have been modified as required.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken within the Group, the external auditor
also assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of certain
key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s
recommendations are adopted and enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls will be made.
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Risk Management (Cont’d)
The Group’s risk management objectives:

e At a strategic level, the Group focuses on the identification
and management of material risks at the Group, business
and functional levels, in order to better equip itself to
pursue the Group's strategic and business objectives.

e At an operational level, the Group aims to identify,
assess, evaluate and mitigate operational hazards and
risks in order to create a safe, healthy, efficient and
environmentally-friendly workplace for its employees
whilst ensuring products and services provided safety and
health, minimising environmental impact, and securing
asset integrity.

The Group'’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria

The Group's risk appetite represents the amount of risk the
Group is willing to undertake in pursuit of its strategic and
business objectives. In line with expectations of its stakeholders,
the Group will only take reasonable risks that (a) fit its strategy
and capability, (b) can be understood and managed, and (c) do
not expose the Group to:

e material financial loss;

e incidents affecting safety and health of employees;

. material breach of regulations;

e damage of the Group’s reputation and brand name;

e business/supply interruption; and

e  severe environmental incidents.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)

The Group'’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria
(Cont’d)

Based on the above, the Group has established its risk
monitoring in the form of a risk assessment matrix to help
rank risks and prioritise risk management efforts at the Group
level. Business units are required to adopt the same risk
matrix structure in order to establish their own risk profiling,
determine consequence and likelihood of identified risks with
reference to their own materiality and circumstances as well as
establishing risk mitigation strategies.

Inherent risk assessment matrix

R EERRIMEE (&)

Rk EE (&)

25 [B 49 7 B R F BE ) B B AT 14 B R (AE)

R bl 2 R 768 8] i) TE B BT £k AR e DA
TR ERMFR TR EEEESHRREE
THRETERERF REEREEBEMRD
A 1D e R g A Pl 2R 48 2R R £ B8 6 S B L iz iR
S WRFECHMEROER S RBEREEH
&R N AT BEME - (T 1 7T R B AT AR SR o

BB BB T 1L A

Likelihood Rating

BETRMEER
1. Highly 2. Not 4. Strong
Impact Rating unlikely expected 3. Sometimes possibility 5. Very likely
BRER ] FATTBE ] &€ A A #E BOUBE

5. Critical Moderate High
BRIk R = B
4. Major Moderate Moderate
ESDN R &R

3. Moderate Low Moderate
i 1K /2 Fx B
2. Minor Low Low
i 1K = B2 1K & B2
1. Insignificant Low Low
1 38 1R 1K 2 1K J 2

High Very high Very high

= [ B 13 = 2 B 1 = B
lfe]y High Very high

= [ B = [ e 1% = & b2
Moderate High High
B = AR =

Low Moderate Moderate

1K 2 fx AR B R R
Low Low Low
{EWENE 1K = B 1K = B2
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(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont’d)

Risk management process

Bk EE (&)

BEEEERF

The Group adopts the principles of ISO 31000:2009 Risk  ZAfLEBEEA (ISO 31000 : 2009/E g & 12 — R B
Management — Principles and Guidelines as its approach to K#E35|) AMNRAMEAEEHEERLEERRK

manage its business and operational risks. The

following ®JF &t TEFARIEHRR TR EEKREE

diagram illustrates the key processes used to identify, evaluate EARKBHTEBIE:

and manage the Group's significant risks:

2

"= Establishing the context
b ERREMR = 3
X &

€
o) &
= IR
S R|sk assessment 0
® BT AL 2
= 2
g Risk identification i
S EE =
= . c
e Risk analysis e
s B E 1
5 =
= Risk evaluation 3 !
2 R FZ g ’
g s 4,5
o

Risk treatment
kR

Is integrated into business and decision-making processes ¢ MAZSHEERBRRERET BERKES
#

The management establishes common risk language and risk assessment criteria for the
Group.

Business units identify the risks which may potentially impact the achievement of their
business objectives, and analyze and evaluate the significance of such risk.

Business units assess the adequacy of existing controls, determine and implement
treatment plans where risk mitigants are actionable.

Business units monitor risk mitigating activities.

The management tracks the progress of risk mitigating activities; reports the consolidated
view of risks regularly to audit and risk management committee;and shares risk knowledge
across business units to enhance the risk management standard of the Group.

Group internal audit reports regularly to the Board and/or audit and risk management
committee to provide independent assurance onthe effectiveness of risk management
function.

& IR [ I AN S 1 P R B 41T AR R L B AT A R o
EBBEMATREAERESTEEUXBEENRAR UERANMEFZZSARNERE-
EBBMAERTEERGRR AREREETRERBRNERE -
EBEMERRERARNTE-
EEESRAERARTENES THAERRAREEZSGE
R RIBR MER BRI F R H AR A 5 B L 12 J<3F
SENSEFRERNEESR NERLARERZEGER HEMARERERS
BRRHUBIIRE -

EREANERNGRAE

J

including strategy formulation, business planning, capital EEBRE B0l RERTE A
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day- ERMEREEE

to-day operations management.

e Involves establishing the context, identifying risks, * BIEFEEE - FHIER &80 HEE %

assessing their consequences and likelihood, evaluating R R E IR A9 AT BE 15 4 R B K T R
risk level, control gaps and priorities, and developing ZERAREEREROTR  WETEREE
control and mitigation plans. This is a continuous process o DA R BT BE PR AN AT AR 58 - B (IS AEEY
with periodic monitoring and review in place. It is also an BIERRETHERRBN ARtz
interactive process with stakeholder communication and BEBALEBNZANEHBERE-

consultation.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont’d)

Risk management process (Cont’d)

BB EERAIREE (£)

Rk EE (&)

EEERERF (&)
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The Group adopts an integrated bottom-up and top-
down risk review process to enable (a) comprehensive
identification and prioritisation of all material risks
throughout the Group, (b) escalation of material risks
at the right managerial level, (c) effective risk dialogue
among the management team, and (d) proper oversight of
risk mitigation efforts.

Bottom-up process:

e Business units and group functions are required to
submit their material risks identified through their risk
management process to the management.

e The management, through aggregation, filtering and
prioritising processes as well as consultation process,
compile a Group Risk Management Report. The senior
management reviews and scrutinises the material risks
and ensures the appropriate controls and mitigation
measures are in place or in progress.

e  Following review by the senior management, Group
Risk Management Report is submitted to the audit
and risk management committee with a summary of
the material risks circulated to the Board.

Top-down process:

e  Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks,
which might have a material impact on the Group
over a longer timeframe, are monitored and discussed
on a regular basis by the management.

AEERABHTMERAEH THEZESE
pRARF AE@QE2HEENIEENME
EXEAR WETEIHFF OBEXE
b =@ *‘E’JEEEJ"%Z%'J (OFEEEE

MEBETESER HEEERR
FEIE-
BTrmENERF:

o  HERBMNMEEBEBMIERESIERE
MERARERERBEFZRANOEKXNE

G o
N

e EHEEBES HENREFNIE
ARFEAEF REEERREER
T BREEERREANRR AHE
REHA XM A BN E I NAT &R
il

. EEREREBME BsHES
EREABREREEEE WREARR

MERXESSMEM-

e N

e EEETHEELTwALHEER
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(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont'd) kTR (&)
Risk management process (Cont'd) EREERF (&)

Top-down process: (Cont’d) BEmTORER: (&)
EREMNBARTANIIGEAER
B) B IR IE FRAE AR BT AN 5T 5 BT A LB o
BARHEMEREFEFEHREAEIE
hETRN iR BRI RERE
REVF £ R R R EAREEL N E
Bk A ARPTE — AT R EEER -

e The management facilitates ongoing emerging risk o
review and management discussion by compiling
relevant information from both internal and
external sources. Overarching strategic risks are
reviewed and discussed during the annual business
planning process. Emerging risks that are identified
and considered material are further assessed and
monitored by relevant business units or group
functions.

PO BP EE 4% 2 1 26 A B B B AR T AT SR A D
- AEERRERRBRET NEEE
fem@BrET —EERBENNHMSMEERT
B-AEENRERERBMES AP EEIER
BEEEN TENEEEHREEBRH

e Internal control is an integral part of enterprise risk e
management. The Group’s enterprise risk management
framework encompasses internal control, forming a more
robust conceptualization and tool for management. Risk
management is closely linked to the Group’s Integrated

Framework of Internal Control, key controls are subject to
testing in order to assess their effectiveness.

In the annual business planning process, business units are
required to identify all material risks that may impact their
achievement of business objectives. Identified risks are
evaluated based on the same set of risk profiling criteria
as the risk review process. Plans to mitigate the identified
risks are developed for implementation and budget
purposes.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to oversee the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. This
is achieved through a defined management structure with
specified limits of authority and defined control responsibility
designed to:

e Achieve business objectives and safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition;

e  Ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication; and

e Ensure compliance with the relevant legislation and
regulations.

R EERRIMEE (&)

AR ES =

EFeRREEEREEAREANMEERLS
AN MBREEERNARERZEEER
AR N ARRE B AR E RN IERH
g
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TEEBRES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Internal control framework

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal
controls which continues to be consistent with Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
which comprises 17 principles on effective internal controls as
illustrated below:

R EERRIBEE (£)

mEREEE (4F)
BB FEHE S8

N E B # 17 BACommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO)HyInternal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) ( {NEPEEIE —4R A IEZE (=
T—=%)) IREANGENINEEREB-F
RAMEZR BB LA T 1718 A] 42 3R A BF B 15 1 JR
A

ethical values.

e Demonstrates a commitment to attract,
develop, and retain competent individuals in
alignment with objectives

e Holds individuals accountable for their internal
control responsibilities in the pursuit of
objectives

5 Components 17 Principles SKEZ 1788

Control o Demonstrates a commitment to integrity and THIRE: o BRYINEMEEENAGE
environment: ethical values

NEREER

The internal o The Board demonstrates independence from 2 BERIE o EZCBUNERE IE
organizational management and exercises oversight of the i BERE BENBEE RS R T ELR
environment development and performance of internal EEEREDY 3
driven by the control HAE AL
management RIF o
operating o The management establishes, with board o EEFREET EEER
philosophy, oversight, structures, reporting lines, and VEABERE ERBEERE
risk appetite, appropriate authorities and responsibilities in EMEBEEARE NEIE
integrity, and the pursuit of objectives okt =N

o BRYMS BENREA
THERE AEAKENE
E=]:

. EXSHBINBRETE
HERNLEANBRS
BRACERSERFE
e
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BB EERAIREE (£)

(Cont’d)
Internal Controls (Cont’d) REBEEIR (&)
Internal control framework (Cont’d) AEBEFERESRE (&)
5 Components 17 Principles SKEZR 178R A
Risk assessment: o Specifies objectives with sufficient clarity to B aT A - o TEEBWMBK WHSH
enable the identification and assessment of REVEERE mmER
Risks are identified risks relating to objectives P E s AT
and the likely HYBEEm
impact on the o Identifies risks to the achievement of its T o BAROMERREREHN
organization is objectives across the entity and analyses risks PEAXHRER WAL 1E
assessed. as a basis for determining how the risks should RETENNERELRR
be managed ) £ 1
o Considers the potential for fraud in assessing o EFHEHEMEENER
risks to the achievement of objectives B ZREEMNERTA
o Identifies and assesses changes that could o BAMFREHAPEERS
significantly impact the system of internal AREREAYENRE
control
Control activities: o Selects and develops control activities that THEE): o BERMFTELEE
contribute to the mitigation of risks to the HAMZABERREZE
Policies and achievement of objectives to acceptable levels EHBERE XKF
procedures are FHERER
implemented o Selects and develops general control activities WITHAEE o EMREEEENH K
to ensure over technology to support the achievement of NS MEZER EEENDE
organizational objectives BEE- E3ERD
objectives and
risk-mitigation o Deploys control activities through policies that o EBHIFTERBREOPE -
activities are establish what is expected and procedures that Wil IR F BREEE N
effectively put policies into action NEHT REERIBET
executed. HE

Annual Report 2016 —&—

NEFH

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT

71



Corporate Governance Report

TEEBRRES
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(Cont’d)
Internal Controls (Cont’d) A EBEEE (4Z)
Internal control framework (Cont’d) A EEEERESE ()
5 Components 17 Principles SKEZ 178 R 8
Information and o Obtains or generates and uses relevant, quality EERER: o WEFER UFAEER
Communication: information to support the functioning of BEMNEH IHNDER
internal control op:
Relevant PARAT A A R B
information is o Internally communicates information, BEREE | REEAPEEXHANE
communicated including objectives and responsibilities for B RMRE REEMENEM BEA
in an internal control, necessary to support the ER: HERHENMEE
acceptable functioning of internal control
format and
timely fashion o Communicates with external parties regarding o HINFHYERFPEREE
to enable the matters affecting the functioning of internal HMZEETER
organization control
to meet its
objectives.
Monitoring: o Selects, develops, and performs ongoing and/ EREE: o EEHIVEHREER/
or separate evaluations to ascertain whether B BEASE
The internal the components of internal control are present SEEENIE INEERAFENEEE
control process and functioning BIRAE - EE 3
is continually EREN
monitored. o Evaluates and communicates internal control ERELE o EETEAFEENRE
Modifications deficiencies in a timely manner to those EPABER WEE RS ERMAEHE
are made parties responsible for taking corrective action, HEEEE) - BHEEAT BEREE
to improve including senior management and the board BABNESE (MER)E
internal control of directors, as appropriate a3
activities as a
result of the
monitoring
process.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Internal control framework (Cont’d)

Within this comprehensive internal control framework,
management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone
from the top, performing risk assessments, and owning the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Other teams such as Finance, Legal, and Human Resources
provide assistance and expertise to management to assist it in
undertaking its responsibilities. The Board and its audit and risk
management committee oversee the actions of management
and monitor the effectiveness of the established controls,
assisted by assurance provided by the external and internal
auditors.

Control standards, checks and balances

Built into the Group’s system are checks and balances. In
addition, as an integral part of our internal control systems,
well defined policies and procedures are properly documented
and communicated. The corporate policies form the basis
of all the Group’s major guidelines and procedures and set
forth the control standards required for the functioning of the
Group’s business entities. The policies address legal, regulatory,
and operational topics, including, for example, intellectual
property, data privacy, employee health and safety, delegation
of authority, information security, and business continuity.

Our internal control systems are based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability and the
systems cover every activity and transaction of our Group. We
emphasise to our employees that everyone, no matter where he
or she stands in the corporate hierarchy, is an important part of
our internal control systems and we expect them to contribute
to that system.
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(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Control standards, checks and balances (Cont’d)

Additionally, the Group has a strong corporate culture based
on good business ethics and accountability. The Code of
Conduct, which applies to all employees, forms the basis
of the Group’'s commitment to conducting all business with
uncompromising integrity and ethical behavior. The Code also
helps employees determine when to ask for advice, and how
to obtain it. All employees are required to comply with the
Code. The Group regards any violation of the Code as a serious
matter and is committed to investigating all reported concerns.
Furthermore, in keeping with best practices, the Group has
developed and implemented an Anti-Corruption Policy which
reinforces the Code and provides additional specific guidance
regarding compliance with rules and laws related to corruption.
In addition to setting out guidelines, principles and values,
we recognise that an environment where employees feel free
to bring problems to management is also necessary to make
our internal control systems effective. Our Whistleblowing
Policy make it clear that all reports to management will be
handled confidentially to the fullest extent possible under the
circumstances.

This comprehensive internal controls framework established by
the Group covers all activities and transactions. Management
performs periodic enterprise wide risk assessments and
continuously monitors and reports progress of action plans to
address these key risks. Management also assesses business
risks when formulating corporate strategies, and tracks and
reports on the implementation of strategic initiatives, business
plans, budgets and financial results regularly to the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Control standards, checks and balances (Cont’d)

To assist the audit and risk management committee in its
oversight and monitoring activities, the Group maintains an
independent internal audit function. Internal audit department,
with its function independent of the Group's business
operations and complementary to that of the external auditor,
plays an important role in monitoring the Group’s internal
governance. Internal audit provides objective assurance to
the audit and risk management committee that the system of

internal controls is effective and operating as intended.

Key control procedures

(i)  Establishing a structure with defined authority and proper
segregation of duties

— A clear organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility to facilitate systematic delegation of
authority.

—  Written policies, procedures and guidelines with
defined limits of delegated authority to facilitate

effective segregation of duties and controls.

(i)  Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

— Business units carry out their respective business
operating plans as laid down in the strategic plan in
accordance with the adopted policies and procedures.

— An annual budget with financial targets provides
the foundation for the allocation of resources in
accordance with prioritised business opportunities.

— Variance analyses help identify deficiencies and
enables timely remedial actions to be taken.

Annual Report 2016 —F— REE$§

BB EERAIREE (£)

mEREEE (4F)

EREERVGHES (&)

R EZLEREEZEG CEERESE
B AEEZUBLASEZRS  NHEZE
MR B YN AEENEREE  EIMNERE
EWIIJJ%LE”J*EEHBE?’Eﬁtﬁ‘?ﬁgllﬁﬁﬁﬁ

AR I LEEZEEZAC AHBEZAGAE
ﬁ&ﬂ/\ﬁﬁé,\ahf HEIRE UREA
BRESYE RGN HA R WUETT -

EERERF
(i) BYBRESH BERSIONRE

— SEWABZEBN EESH FIE

BRI TRAE -

- REEEOBR - BRF&ESFER
EREGE MNEERE D BEM
/:T"‘[‘o

(i) ERBERE LRI
- EBBEUREERMADBRELEFHR
TERERENEEELEENE -

- EBEMRESRNFEREE MZEKE
FERFDEE IR ZTE

- EBREESWERNTTRZE NUE
KBS E AR ATE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT

75



76

Corporate Governance Report

AL A i s/
TEERBREE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Key control procedures (Cont'd)
(iii) Designing an effective accounting and information system

- A comprehensive accounting system for providing
financial and operational performance indicators
to facilitate problem identification, and to ensure
complete, relevant and accurate financial information
for timely reporting and disclosure purpose.

- An information system for identifying, capturing
and communicating pertinent information to enable
employees to carry out their responsibilities.

—  Regular reviews for ensuring proper and legitimate
dissemination of financial information.

(iv) Handling and dissemination of inside information

—  The Group regularly review inside information’s policy
and procedures and make recommendations on a
amendments there to, if necessary, in order to ensure
their effectiveness in making accurate, balanced and
timely disclosure of information in accordance with
disclosure obligations in the changing regulatory
environment.
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TEEARES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Key control procedures (Cont'd)

(v) Encouraging reporting on serious concern about
malpractice

— The Group operates a Whistleblowing Policy which
enables employees to raise concerns about any
malpractice, impropriety or fraud relating to internal
controls and other matters confidentially, without fear
of reprisal or victimization.

— Under the Group Whistleblowing Policy, audit and risk
management committee are responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of the actions taken in response to
disclosures made under the policy by employees.

—  Other stakeholders, such as customers and suppliers,
can also raise concerns about any improprieties or
potential improprieties of the Group.

(vi) Ensuring controls and reviews of IT application systems as
well as principal operations

—  Various controls and independent reviews are in place
to uphold the integrity, reliability, availability, security
and stability of the Group's IT application systems.

R EERRIMEE (&)

mEREEE (4F)

BEERERF (#)

BEERBRERETR

- SEZENRBECRAFEEEZAR
ERESAEMBHARBREM S KA
BELEREMEENTE KEFF
BRIT Ao

BHRER - BEZLEREEER
/\@\  EEMEERBEZBENE
MEEMEDRNTEREAR

— HttEsA (WBEELREER) LA
EENEMREREEREMERHK
o8 R -

HEMBEMEARERMEBREBOEZE R
*/\/\ﬂ

— RESBITRAMEERBIRE U
BREBEMBMERRZRGTEA
E EREEF-LZ2RETE

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§ SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ R4+ (5£8) RHABERA R

77



78

Corporate Governance Report

AL A i s/
TEERBREE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal
control measures, the Company understands its duties under
the Listing Rules and SFO, and adheres to the important
principle of timely publication of the inside information.
The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of inside
information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission, and has developed a complete system of internal
procedures and internal control measures for processing
and publication of information in order to ensure the timely,
accurate and appropriate disclosure of relevant information to
the shareholders and regulatory authorities.

The Group takes all reasonable measures from time to time
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement. In this respect, the Management
ensures that appropriate systems and procedures are put in
place and reviewed periodically to enable the Group to comply
with the disclosure requirements. The management also
regularly oversees the proper implementation and functioning
of the mechanisms and ensures that any material deficiencies
are detected and resolved in a timely manner.

Measures include but are not limited to the following:

(a) Establish controls for monitoring business and corporate
developments and events so that any potential inside
information is promptly identified and escalated.

(b) Restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis. Ensure
employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality.
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TEEARES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information (Cont’d)

(c) Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Group enters into significant negotiations.

(d) Develop procedures for responding to market rumours,
leaks and inadvertent disclosures.

(e) Provide regular training to relevant employees to help
them understand the Company’ policies and procedures as
well as their relevant disclosure duties and obligations.

(f) Disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock Exchange before
the information is released via other channels, such as the
press, wire services or posting on the Company’s website.

Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2016, the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems have been reviewed twice a year.

During 2016, Group internal audit conducted selective reviews
of the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal controls of the Group over financial, operational and
compliance controls with emphasis on business continuity
management and procurement. Additionally, the heads of
major business and corporate functions were required to
undertake control self-assessments of their key controls. These
results were assessed by the senior management and reported
to the audit and risk management committee, which then
reviewed and reported the same to the Board.

The audit and risk management committee and the Board were
not aware of any areas of concern that would have a material
impact on the Group’s financial position or results of operations
and considered the risk management and internal control
systems to be generally effective and adequate including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in
printed form and are available on the GEM website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.
com.cn;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company's
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place

of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no

significant change in the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association.
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TEEARES

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeqguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the
case may be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such
requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company or
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP)
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 89 to 172, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

BT SE

BEBER-

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRNESTNMEERRESEZE

MREFFEERERMANEXRHE ALY
ARG EVBBRENBITZRAEENEIER %
EFEHERERMBABREAMBHRR LA
EARKETREMN KM @HZFETHEHR

Valuation of trade receivables

FEWE 5 RR 1 18

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to its financial significance to
the consolidated financial statements and significant
degree of estimation by management in determining the
allowance for doubtful debt based on the credit history
of its customers and the current market conditions.
BPCHEEKESERGERBREAFIE LA
REHGAMBRRNVBEEMUAREEBERER
BEFMEETHE MRS TNETERRBEGRMIERT
BERE-

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB35,643,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB1,658,000.

Wi e MmN E16MEE RE—XE+2H
=+t HOEWE SRFNEREE R AR35,643,0007T
(BEMBRRERAH AR%1,658,0007T) °
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of trade

receivables included:
HMEHEEREZRRGEENEFERIE:

Obtaining an understanding of the rationale
applied by the management in determining
the allowance for doubtful debts and assessing
its reasonableness with reference to the aging
analysis, information of subsequent settlements
and historical settlement pattern of the debtors;
DEREROT KREENNERREBAELLE
BEEAEFRENTHEREETRERERTE

HEBEMERMKE:

Testing the aging analysis of the trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the source

documents; and

R X HEWE 5 R R Rk D AT ETT

A R

Testing the subsequent settlements of the trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the source

documents.
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B M % BRD R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or errofr.
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B M % BRD )R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

BB R B AR S B B MR A RIER
BEE)

s HEHAVBBRNWERIHIA BB
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EARFRREBR S REE-
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BHRERBER -HMEE BEKEEG
BT BB RTIT  RIPIRBRT B RAE

2HEME-

BrE A FIEIN AR IE B BB OVEE
HENMGRERAREREAERS EHREHERL
PEEF PR H AR EHNERNEATEZ
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i
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine this matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit
matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yuen Wing Hang.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEaRRHEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EE—NFEf = —HIFEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
ok AR¥Fr AREFT
Revenue HEWA 5 64,557 55,819
Cost of sales 55 B AR (34,109) (29,223)
Gross profit EF 30,448 26,596
Other income E A ug A 1,625 867
Other gains and losses Hub s & g 1E 6 (2,303) (2,188)
Distribution and selling expenses 7§ & $5 & & (9.162) (8,564)
Administrative expenses EREH (11,106) (12,707)
Reversal of (impairment loss) FEUE 5 AR BOURLE # [
recognised on trade receivables, (EE) FE
net 440 (501)
Finance costs mESBHA 7 (998) (1,028)
Profit before tax B B4 A1 35 8,944 2,475
Income tax expense Frigsif X 8 (1,916) (1,181)
Profit and total comprehensive ZEREERFR2MEWAETE
income for the year 9 7,028 1,294
Earnings per share TR
— basic (RMB cents) —HEX(ARKS) 2 0.81 0.15
— diluted (RMB cents) —EE (ARES) 12 0.81 0.15

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R BRI R &

At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—NF+_-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—HF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Jiokia AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE BB R&E 13 7,525 8,292
Intangible assets mILEE 14 1,802 2,168
9,327 10,460
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories 5B 15 427 507
Trade and other receivables EWE S RKHEMRR 16 41,383 25,573
Held for trading investments REEERE 17 707 690
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIR® 18 23,186 18,901
65,703 45,671
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ERE 5 R H MR 719 12,980 10,290
Amounts due to directors B EE KB 20 1,037 902
Amount due to R EZERARFIE
immediate holding company 21 12 11
Tax payable FERBIIE 1,661 908
Borrowings BE 22 4,444 10,179
20,134 22,290
Net Current Assets REBEETHE 45,569 23,381
Total assets less current liabilities B EER AT A B 54,896 33,841
Non-current Liability ERBEE
Borrowings BE 22 51,638 38,421
Net Assets (Liabilities) EE(8E)FE 3,258 (4,580)
Capital and reserves ERR#E
Share capital fig A 23 8,551 8,551
Reserves i (5,293) (13,131)
Total Equity (Deficit on EERAE (RREZEM)
Shareholders’ Equity) 3,258 (4,580)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 172 were  FE8IE172EFE MG AWM BRERNIEKESS
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on W ZZT—+%F = 5 =+ = B #t ) R E#E T
22 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIATRERE:

HUNG YUNG LAI CUl JIAN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
REE R ER
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
nVTA*E.:Eﬁm%EJ’IH—E

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Bz T

NFEFZA=F—HILFE

*T=—=
Share
Share Share Statutory Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve reserve losses Total
S RHEE EERE EHGE BRERE ZitER ait
RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB000 RIMB000 RIMB'000 RIMB000
ANEEFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AEEfr  AEEFZ E&Ffr E¥Ffr
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hia) (Hisb)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-A 8,360 155,185 3,613 5217 30,324 (214,269) (11,570)
Profit and total comprehensive ZWE iHR2E Uﬁl/\
income for the year B% - - - - 1,294 1,294
Exercise of share options TEEAR ERE 191 3423 - - (1,220) 2,394
Lapse of share options Kﬁr%ﬁlzﬁ%ﬂﬂ - - - - (453) 453 -
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRELENRH B
share-based payments ERAR - - - - 3302 - 3,302
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE
+-A=t+-H 8,551 158,608 3,613 5217 31,953 (212,522) (4,580)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEEFIRZEMRA
income for the year &3 - - - - - 7,028 7,028
Lapse of share options TEERMERE - - - - (1,291) 1,291 -
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRELENRH B
share-based payments AWM - - - - 810 - 810
At 31 December 2016 RIE-RF
+-A=z1+-H 8,551 158,608 3,613 5217 31,472 (204,203) 3,258
Notes: Vo
(@) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”), share (@) WBEARE-NN—FQXRLE([REEE])  KBHO&EE

Annual Report 2016 —&—

premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an
enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by
their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The
enterprise expansion fund can be used for expanding the capital base of
the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

NEFH

(b)

AR TR T’E%BEEN«XT’F?R'H DR E 9 K

% ZIS’/}ﬂT BN fE
B D

H,H\Ef

(i) ﬁﬁlXZTEfﬁ

/E'*/)E&/)Eﬁﬁx 83 beﬂxfn mf“&ﬁzﬁ aﬁ%f’ﬂﬂn

Ik ©

RFEPEARKNE ([FE])IIHRECEZHRDA
BRIERARE  ARBZHEM B AR ARLMIA

0k

DK ZEERE MERBERES NOLERBRF

o DI ER L 2 BRI BB & FEE
BHERCHBRRAFNREN MERER D LELER A
EXANEFGTFRT  ATABFEEBBERRE

E—FEZEBER(WAE)

CHAEBEBEAMCBETERR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETREX

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - FE—NFE+_-A=4+—HIFFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEH
Profit before tax B 554 A 4 A 8,944 2,475
Adjustments for: HEEASE
Finance costs BmEER 998 1,028
Interest income FEWA (12) (1)
Exchange loss i 5 8k 2,158 2,087
Depreciation of property, THE BELRRETE
plant and equipment 871 1,060
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 366 32
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE BEMEEEIS
plant and equipment 4 -
Impairment loss recognised on FEWE ZEEFUREE R
trade receivables - 1,962
Recovery of trade receivables FEWE 5 BRFORE & B
previously impaired (440) (1,461)
Equity-settled share-based [ e 45 S LARR 0 73 A B T SR 2
payment expenses 810 3,302
Loss arising on change in BIEEEREZANEE
fair value on financial assets B 18
classified as held for trading 22 49
Operating cash flows before EEEABBHAZRERER
movements in working capital 13,721 10,523
Increase in trade and JE W 5 B H A BR 5138 AN
other receivables (15,370) (6,629)
Increase (decrease) in trade and JERTE 5 & H b BR 58 0
other payables CRLA) 2,690 (1,816)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA () 80 (97)
Cash from operations BREMEBHRS 1,121 1,981
Income tax paid 2RISR (1,163) (1,010)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM EEBMRE (A
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ziﬁﬁ%%ﬁ (42) 971
SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥R &+ (5£8) RHERA A Annual Report 2016 = — XEER



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv—_ﬁ /| IE@U“JE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2016 2015
A —hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F AREFor
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Payment for addition to XNEEAEE
intangible assets - (1,678)
Purchase of property, BEIHE WENMZE
plant and equipment (108) (639)
Interest received B U FE 12 1
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETZBFFAZCHEESFHE
ACTIVITIES (96) (2,306)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Proceeds from loans from a director EEEEMEHIE 4,769 5,366
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEERNE %/ZIE 4,000 6,000
Advance from directors ERREMH BN 341 357
Proceeds from exercise of share options ﬁ@ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁlgﬁi - 2,394
Repayment of loans to a director BEE=EE - (1,398)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (3.444) (3,442)
Interest paid EATHE (998) (1,028)
Repayment of advance from directors EBEEEZZBR (245) (230)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METHRESRSFER
ACTIVITIES 4,423 8,019
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS #nE 4,285 6,684
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHAZRERATEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 18,901 12,217
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZEHER
AT END OF THE YEAR, BEEEY
represented by bank balances and cash  BiR 7745 8 & 38 & 23,186 18,901

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§
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GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is
Goldcorp Industrial Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr.
Hung Yung Lai, who is also the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products
and provision of technical support services. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 28.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRe B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

—REIE

Bt (EE)ROBRAA (AR
ADEAREIMRLA—HEREE
RAF ERORBEEBBRERIMBRA
RAIZER EM - ARAFMMNREEREE
EGiIt RN FER[RARER] —fiEE -H
B R &R A R A Goldcorp Industrial
Limited  Z AR R REBEZESIMX
S BRESIESI T REREME S E (RREIER
RMITES) o

REMBRRAARE (TARE]) 25
MARBDARARREMBARZIESR
W o

RARBIREWMBRAR (SBIAKE]) X
ERFRHERRAERIEE HEEBE
HEDRREHEBMIERBZEES AR
AIMB AR FEEBHNGEMBRE
MI7E28 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Application of amendments to IFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

("IASB") for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and position for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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B0 B B 75 3R 5 22 R U B R A as A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRe B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - FE—NFE+_-A=4+—HIFFE

FE 37 R] B ARAE BT B PR B 7% R 5 2
A (TEMFBRELEL]) (&)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

© 28 3 fef AR 4 Rz 3 RT R AR S RT B R B
BHREEARBE

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective

AREB I ARIZFRAA TS RMAERARE
R HR] AR NS 7] B B B 75 3R 5 2R Rl ] iR

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs and interpretation that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to |AS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments’

Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle®

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or

1 January 2018, as appropriate

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements
for financial assets.

FE R 3R] B ARAE BT B PR B A R 5 2
Bl (BB ELEL ) (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRe B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

FE 37 R] B ARAE BT B PR B 7% R 5 2
A (TEMFBRELEL]) (&)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

© 28 3 fef AR 4 Rz 3 RT R AR S RT B R B
BHEEAREE (&)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d) BB R EREI @M T A ()

K 6 (B B 2 B R B 7 e o 2R R 35955
ZEBREHINWOT

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the

98

Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investment that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contracting cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset that give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the expected
credit loss model may result in early provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's
financial assets measured at amortised cost. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of IFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a detailed
review.

FE R 3R] B ARAE BT B PR B A R 5 2
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

In 2016, clarifications to IFRS 15 are issued in relation
to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipates that the
application of IFRS 15 in the future has no material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
[FRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

treatments for both lessors and lessees.

when it becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, operating lease payments are currently
presented as operating cash flows. Under the IFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
RMB1,075,000 as disclosed in note 25.

The directors of the Company do not expect that the
adoption of IFRS 16 as compared with the current
accounting policy would result in significant impact on the
Group's result.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. Specifically, the amendments require the
following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing
cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect
of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier
application permitted. The application of the amendments
will result in additional disclosures on the Group's
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities will be provided on application.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to IFRSs and interpretation
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (Cont’d)

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other amendments
to IFRSs and interpretation will not have material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions and/or
the disclosures to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEHHFE (£)
Revenue recognition HEWRAER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Service income for provision of technical support is
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Intangible assets (Cont’d)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EERHKE (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SRIA (&)
Financial assets (Cont’d) STREE (&)
Effective interest method B3 %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont'd) E®MIA (&)

Financial assets (Cont’d) TRMEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) LHEERE (&)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of FEEMeRmEESBRAEZRBRIRE

impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or . ASKE F 7538 I 8 KB R
counterparty; or ﬁ

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency o ERAEH MEAkEXRFESED
in interest or principal payments; or B

BRABAREEENETMEES-

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade FEWE 5 B R A AIEERRECE T
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired CREE EROHRBEEELEITHER
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on o B RBHG CEEREREABE
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for REBZBAERRES HENTEENR
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past ZH#E120-180K ZEEHI Z R BUE N - A
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the &R R IB B A A B 2 2 Bl 5 A8
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the AR R B R - B HE R PR IR GRIB B B -

credit period of 120 — 180 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when BEEEDNEEEEREREELHRR
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and BERARERTER LEZEECERE
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying Bz REBERMERR 2Bt R RB LR
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash EZHEZEZEZBAE-

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEHHFE (£)

Annual Report 2016 —F— REE$§

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue cost.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors, amount due to immediate
holding company and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of share options granted would be
expensed fully at one time, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4, HETZTHEEMZETERER (£&)

Annual Report 2016 —&—

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)
Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines impairment of trade receivables in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 3. Such
estimation is based on the credit history of its customers
and the current market conditions. Management reviews
the debtor settlement status periodically and reassesses

hEtZ P REM ZERRR (&)

HREZAERR

AEEBEEEBREWIEIMNG ZEETER
THERESERRTECHRERE-
E%éwﬁ)ﬁ%ﬁ%}fmf,;aaﬁ&“ﬁ%ﬁ
AoEN BEEETHEREBAZEE
MR WEHREEERESRR -WNEP
ZHBRA R BRBEBERMES

the sufficiency of allowance for doubtful debts accordingly. A gaRNtiteE RIE—RF+=
If the customer’s financial position were to deteriorate, A=+—RH BREZRENEAEAA

actual impairment loss or write off would be higher than

R #35,643,0007T % REFEE AR

estimated. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount 1,658,000 (T —HF RFHEHEARA
of trade receivables is RMB35,643,000, net of allowance R #21,650,0007T - fIBR RER BB AR
for doubtful debts of RMB1,658,000 (2015: carrying 8,933,0007T) °

amount of RMB21,650,000, net of allowance of doubtful

debts of RMB8&,933,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION HEWRAR 2 FEHR

Information reported to the Company’s executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Sales of software products

2. Sales of related hardware products

3. Provision of technical support services

NEFH

AARBRITER (NBEEREANZ
BAEETERSERFEDBRBAZE
B TMAERSEE RN ERITRHR
i%o

RIBEBERMBRELNESH AEEZ2
BREEDES:

1. HETSHFE®

2. HEMRREGER

3. REHEMSERRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - ZFE—NFE+_-A=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. SHEWARDHBER (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results PHEERARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBREERERHSBEDHERAR
results by operating and reportable segment: HEBEZOWWAT

Sales of Provision of

Sales of related technical

software hardware support
products products services Total

Rt

HERH SHE MR R x&
Em BHER PR 7% CE

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRH AREFTRT ARETHT ARETR

2016 —E-RE
External sales and total revenue 58 M 4235 E W A

— segment revenue —DEEERA 8,717 6,646 49,194 64,557
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE 1,867 870 9,111 11,848
Unallocated other income KoBEEMEA 1,625
Unallocated other gains Ko BLE A R EE

and losses (2,303)
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 B2 %7 3 (1,228)
Finance costs HEEHA (998)
Profit before tax B 4 Al i A 8,944
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

5.

Annual Report 2016 —&—

= B 5 W AR M A

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

B2 T —NEfT_A=1—HIFZ

5. HEWRARDEEHR (&)

Segment revenues and results (Cont'd) PHHEERARERE (&)
Sales of  Provision of
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
fefit
HE S 55 18 7 BT &
Em BFE® PR 75 B
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETIT AREFT AREFT
2015 ZB-5fF
External sales and total revenue %J49M8%& K 48 55 & W A
— segment revenue —DEHE WA 8,494 4,321 43,004 55,819
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE 935 476 4,737 6,148
Unallocated other income ROBEMBA 867
Unallocated other gains RoBLE MR R EE
and losses (2,188)
Unallocated corporate expenses & % Bm%ﬁﬁi (1,324)
Finance costs BEE (1,028)
Profit before tax B 4 Al i A 2,475
The accounting policies of the operating segments are EESH 2T EERENF3MM 2 A E

the same as the Group's accounting policies as described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit from each
segment without allocation of directors’ remuneration,
finance costs, unallocated other expenses, other income
and other gains and losses. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
segment information on assets and liabilities is presented
as such information is not regularly reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

NEFH

B2 B ERAER - 2 80 M 35 I & D AL
E=Fm RMEER KOoRHEMMAS  HE
WA PA R Bt U B 1R T % 0 BB 2 4
R BIERBEERRAZREH ZEE
EDEERERFBRRABE - AREER

BENRENIL T HRAEERRARE
BESPERERLFGRERENER B
It 3 B 2 Wz FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m ARG

For the year ended 31 December 2016

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

B2 T NEfT A=+ —HIFEF

5. HEWRARDREHR (&)

Other segment information Hith 5 BEH
Sales of Provision of
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
Rt
HERHS HEHRR Bz &
Em BHER R 7% CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
2016 —E-AF
Amounts included in the BERFAESHEE
measure of segment IE:
results:
Depreciation of property, TEE BEK
plant and equipment HETE 117 20 664 871
Amortisation of B EESH
intangible assets 49 37 280 366
Recovery of trade receivables — FEUNE 5 B ZUR E# [
previously impaired (59) (45) (336) (440)
Share-based payment expenses UARX 1) A ZEHEF HFE
(excluding directors) (TRREES) 98 76 556 730
2015 —g-%f
Amounts included in the BERSAESHEE
measure of segment ZHHE:
results:
Depreciation of property, TEE BEK
plant and equipment FETE 162 82 816 1,060
Amortisation of A B
intangible assets 5 2 25 32
Impairment loss recognised JEW B 5 BR 5K 1
on trade receivables 299 151 1,512 1,962
Recovery of trade receivables  JEUWE 5 R FURNE R
previously impaired (222) (113) (1,126) (1,461)
Share-based payment expenses UARX 17 & E i (4 Z 5 2
(excluding directors) (TREES) 451 230 2,284 2,965
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=

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers is all
generated from customers located in the PRC.

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC
by location of assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers from provision of technical

support services of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

HERARDRER (&)

REBRANRES 2 HEWABRE
B E S -

AEBEMAHRDEEREEMELE D
BRRPEEA-

IREFEHR

AEBRBERNEL 2 M ERBGHEE
WABBIEBAHEEI10%T

2016 2015

—E-XE —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr AREFor

Customer A PR 17,427 14,897
Customer B R 13,694 6,775
Customer C XFR N/AFE A 5,938

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

! EEPZHERA BB BN EAR &
10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-ZF—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HtlhmREE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx AREFT
Loss arising on change BEEEREZANE
in fair value on financial assets FEEsia
classified as held for trading 22 49
Exchange loss PE X & 18 2,277 2,139
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE BER
plant and equipment RiEEE 4 -
2,303 2,188
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MEEH
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREFT
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEZFE 299 306
Interest on loans from a director BEEEEZHEA 699 722
998 1,028
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=
B

B #%5 R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

g4 —=

EF—AEF A+ —ALEE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FrEBIRAX
2016 2015
=B-AF —ZT-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PRI ETER
(IEFmBR])
— Current year —KEE 1,661 951
— Underprovision in prior years —BAFEREIR 255 230
1,916 1,181

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee

Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was

established in Hangzhou, the PRC, with statutory tax rate

of 25%. Singlee Technology is regarded as a High and New

Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance Bureau,

Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality

and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State Administration

of Taxation and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential

tax rate for PRC EIT for three years starting from 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, it has been

approved by Zhejiang Finance Bureau, Administrator of

Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality and Zheijiang

Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation for

extending three more years to 2018. Accordingly, the tax

rate for Singlee Technology is 15% for the years ended 31

December 2016 and 2015.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the

applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software

Company Limited (“Singlee Software"”), Beijing Singlee Yin
Tong Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Singlee”)
and Xin Yintong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xin YinTong”) is
25% for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as

the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from

Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2016

and 2015.

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

MMNF AR RBRAR (BB
ARBRFPERIMNKLZ B RF AR
25% )% TE B R AL o F A BT B B
o AT 5 B BT B e B SR B S 42
BT A ™ BT D ERE RS R
TrE - HE_E-—=ZFRA=FARES
PREGEMSHICHEERE-BE_T
—RNFTZA=+—HLEFE ZEBE
BT BB S AT 3 75 BB 17 Bl &
BRK BRI R T BN A E/ET
R=FE2-F\F-BiL #E-_F—X
FR-_FE-AFT-_A=T—BLFEH
MR Z R E/15%

BEFBRCEMSHE BHE_T— A F
M _E-—RAFE+-_A=Z+—HBILFE M
MEFFREBRAT ([FFEE]) bR
FARBEERMER AT ([dERFFH)
RERBREARAR ([FiRE]) 2EA
TRE H25% °

HRAEERBE_Z—R"EL_T—1
FHt_A=Z+—ALFRAERBEEL
AT R BUE ) - 8 L & B M S B AE
R -

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZF

—NE+ZA=+—HIFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 8.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

Friesim < (&)

ﬂiiﬁfﬁlﬁiﬂjéﬁiﬁ?éﬁ*&ﬁm%ﬁ%
HERZBBADER 2 HEMT

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-0F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AEEFT
Profit before tax B B4 A1 & 7 8,944 2,475
Tax charge at enterprise income tax A EEFRTHK15%
rate at 15% (2015: 15%) (Note) T—RHF:15%)
FFE BB (HiE) 1,342 371
Tax effect of income not taxable T RBBAZ
for tax purpose k% (606) (780)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AIFNFE B2 2
for tax purpose MBwE 795 572
Effect of different tax rates of SEERBNEINRZZE
group entities - (795)
Underprovision of tax in prior years @7 FEHIBEET T 255 230
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7R F B & 18~ B 5 & 130 1,583
Tax charge for the year REFEHRIALH 1,916 1,181

Note. Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2015: 15%) represents the
relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of the

Company which generates majority of the Group’s assessable profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 8. FiIs®HmM%x (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RMERAR NEBNREARBEELD
tax losses of approximately RMB55,014,000 (2015: BAREES5,014,0000 (ZFE—RHF : AR
RMB74,659,000) available for offset against future profits. #74,659,00070) + B A TET FE R T A
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to s o] AIER SR B A 2 B TS E 18 - R
the unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable SEWAEEERSATBEERABEL
profits will be available against which the unused tax MIBAE-

losses can be utilised.

The unused tax losses will expire in the following years: RREF L RGABBE B 2 ENHET -
2016 2015

—E-REF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR FT AREFT

2016 - 20,509
2017 14,908 14,908
2018 17,517 17,517
2019 14,871 14,871
2020 6,854 6,854
2021 864 -
Total unused tax losses REBB B EE 55,014 74,659
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

E-FN

NFEFZA=F—HIFE

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

(crediting) the following items:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

REERR

AER MR (FFA) THIRIE:

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
Salaries, wages and e ITENMEMETREF
other staff benefits 18,765 21,124
Retirement benefits schemes RKERETEIHR
contribution 1,124 1,070
Equity-settled share-based payment AR & LARRD AEB A X
expenses 810 3,302
Total staff costs (Note) BIRAEEE (fit) 20,699 25,496
Depreciation of property, THE - BEMEEHETE
plant and equipment 871 1,060
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 366 32
Auditor’s remuneration ZER B & 532 478
Research and development expenses R AR 2 W& E A
recognised as expense
— included in cost of sales — B AEEKAK 7,090 8,423
Impairment loss recognised on EWE B ERFREEE
trade receivables - 1,962
Recovery of trade receivables FE W 5 B BORE # B
previously impaired (440) (1,461)
Cost of inventories recognised BREMI 2 FEMAE
as an expense 3,880 2,945
Interest income FEWA (12) (1)
Government grants 5 T %8 B
— value-added tax refunds —ER R (1,593) (833)

Note. Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEM <
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to B 958 A A _E T AR Bl 2 R R P BR
applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follow: REERFEzZEEZMEOT
2016
—E-RE
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
schemes payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
RELE
RINER AR 7 5 L
ne E e FREX A&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT AREFT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RREE L - 82 4 - 86
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 413 45 - 458
Mr. Hung Ying Rt E - 318 40 80 438
Independent non-executive BYFHTEES
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing EFE 82 - - - 82
Mr. Thomas Tam (formerly HREERE
known as Mr. Tam
Kwok Hing) 82 - - - 82
Mr. Lo King Man ERNEE 82 - - - 82
246 813 89 80 1,228
2015
—E-RE
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
schemes payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
h#sEE
R AR AT
ne #e GG DELGF3 Ch
RMB 00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRAIE - 78 4 - 82
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 331 4 - 335
Mr. Hung Ying RRALE - 333 3 337 673
Independent non-executive BYFHITEES
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing MR EE 78 - - - 78
Mr. Thomas Tam (formerly HEELE
known as Mr. Tam
Kwok Hing) 78 - - - 78
Mr. Lo King Man BEREE 78 - - - 78
234 742 " 337 1,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

11.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
the management of the Company is in the process of re-
appointment of the Chief Executive of the Company and
therefore, there is no emolument for the Chief Executive
to be disclosed.

The executive directors’ emoluments were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments were for their services as directors
of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included two (2015: one) executive directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining three
(2015: four) individuals were as follows:

BE-T—AEF-AS+—ALFE

10. EE®E (&)

11.

HE-_Z2—X"FRZZZE—HF+=H
=T —HLEFE ARAEEEETEN
ZEARRRITHRAEBIZHR - WL BT
4B £ 2 B < BT #E BR o

HTESEFHRXNERARARAEE S
BHEEGANRE - BUIFNTESH
e NEARREERGE A MO RS-

HE_Z—AF_ZT—HF+_A=*1—
BEFE ASETERATANESZFH
B VE & R S| A0 A AN 55 (B 3k I A AN 55 [ B
ZHRMSKEAREREBRB 2 ME-BIEE
EMESIREREHE_T—KZF
—HFEF+ A=+ —BIEFEZ T

N
S

BEME

AEEREZSHFALEREME (ZF
—hF:—R)ARFRTES EFHE
FALXBENEMP -BT=AL (=
TRF:MA)ZHFHMET:

2016 2015

—E-REF e

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T AREFT

Salaries and other benefits Fe kEMETR 1,150 1,389

Contribution to retirement RRERETEIHR

benefits schemes 95 176
Equity-settled share-based RIBZEE RN BERM KA

payment expenses 185 983

1,430 2,548
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e MR mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

11. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) 11.

Their emoluments were individually within the
HK$1,000,000 band.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

BEME (&)

HEER 2 B N TR & 1,000,000 2 £
ElR

HE-_Z—XR"EFER_ZFT—AF+=A
ST —HLEFE AEEBERNTEES
AT RHEEESHMERRSI EINAKRSE
B sl AR B e 2 SREBM Sl VR /B HL 2R B
T2 MEE -

BRI =

RRAFHRAANEIESRERN BT
mITOIBEAE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Profit for the year attributable KAEIER ARBEFE
to owners of the Company BREAR KB WL
for the purposes of basic and FEAG F NI

diluted earnings per share

7,028 1,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d) 12. BRI ZE (&)
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
‘000 ‘000
FR F
Number of shares g gE|
Weighted average number of ordinary M{Est EEREAR I~
shares for the purpose of basic LB INAE T
earnings per share 864,430 852,677
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ~ ESEBE LT RBRERENTE
shares — Share options 3,571 21,274
Weighted average number of RETEGREE R 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of LB nAE T
diluted earnings per share 868,001 873,951

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the exercise of
2007 Option, 2010 January Option, 2010 August Option,
2011 February Option and 2015 May Option (as defined in
note 24) because the exercise prices of those options were
higher than the average market prices for 2016.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 does not assume the exercise of
2007 Option, 2010 August Option, 2011 February Option
and 2015 May Option because the exercise prices of those
options were higher than the average market prices for
2015.
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BERBENEYRAHE_STLFER
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—hFRABRE (WHEE224pm) - AR
TE-RFELHENTRERSNTS

7N
FIGERK -
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AREERER-_Z—AFHAERE Fh
TN EHLHENTEERRRTS
FIE -

Annual Report 2016 —F—REE$§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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= B 5 W AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13.TBE BERRKRE

Computer and

Leasehold related Motor
Building  Improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE ERR
B¥ MEEE HERE X &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT
CosT B
At 1 January 2015 RZE-R%—A—H 6,238 3,542 7,198 1,166 18,144
Additions #m 241 31 164 203 639
At 31 December 2015 R=ZE—RF+-A=+—H 6,479 3,573 7,362 1,369 18,783
Additions #m - - 88 20 108
Disposals & - - - (43) (43)
At 31 December 2016  R=ZE—~"F+=-A=+—H 6,479 3,573 7,450 1,346 18,848
DEPRECIATION wnE
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—A%—A—H 122 3,042 5,795 472 9,431
Provided for the year ~ AF#E{E 289 90 549 132 1,060
At 31 December 2015 R=-Z—HF+=-A=+—H 411 3,132 6,344 604 10,491
Provided for the year ~ AF#E{E 293 91 361 126 871
Eliminated on disposal 1% &4 8 - - - (39) (39)
At 31 December 2016 AZT—A~F+-A=1+—H 704 3,223 6,705 691 11,323
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 R=F—xF+-A=+-H 5,775 350 745 655 7,525
At 31 December 2015 A=ZT—RF+-A=+—H 6,068 441 1,018 765 8,292
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Building Over 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term
of lease or 5 years
20% - 30%
10% - 20%

Computer and related equipment
Motor vehicles

The building is situated on leasehold land in the PRC and
held under medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not obtained
the building ownership certificate for its building with
carrying amount of RMB5,556,000 (2015: RMB5,840,000).
Subsequent to the year end, the ownership certificate has
been obtained.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

13.T8HE BERSRE (&)

FERBERTHE BEMARBEBEZ
A E A F B A A B RER T 5 F T
HERA W EF R EMAFFREE:

BF 204F
HEMEEE HEFHRSF

(&G HEABE)
B R ABRERE 20%%30%
B 10%ZE20%

FZRFARP RN B HREA -

HE-_T—XF+-_A=+—H £A5&H
MAEGSEF EFEERECENEREEE
BARMES,556,000 (ZE—HF: AR
#£5,840,0007T) - FEEEE L E 2 EM
HHRBES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 B EE

Development

costs
HEEH
RMB'000
AREFT
COST SN
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—H—H 13,503
Additions N 1,678
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZZE—RHF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2016 —E-RF+ZA=+—H 15,181
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERRE
At 1 January 2015 RNZE—RF—A—H 12,981
Amortisation for the year NEH IR 32
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=_A=+—H 13,013
Amortisation for the year I SE R 366
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-_A=+—H 13,379
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 NZE—R"FE+ZA=+—H 1,802

At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-_A=+—H 2,168

MBEEMEASAEZB LTS UER
RIT(AREZEP) 2R -FREKAZ
EEEMAFH/SE0F KEREESE

costs have finite useful lives of 5-10 years, which are 1=

The development costs represent an online platform
developed internally in promoting business of a bank,
which is the customer of the Group. The development

amortised on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_-ZF— N NF+-H=+—HIFE

15. INVENTORIES 15. 8

2016 2015
=B-AF —F-IF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT
Finished goods B mn 427 507

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. B E 5 & H b AR X
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ANREFor
Trade receivables JEUE FER 3K 37,301 30,583
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (1,658) (8,933)
35,643 21,650
Other receivables H 4th e UG BR 3R 5,740 3,923
41,383 25,573

Other receivables mainly include advance to staff for daily
operation, rental and utility deposits and others.

Customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120 — 180 days. The Group may, on a
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customer’s request.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

HMBREERETERRETAREEZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2016

16.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date
of trade receivables net of allowances at the end of the
reporting period:

EE—NFEf = —HIFEE

16. BRNEZ R EMRNR (&)

AT TS \REWE SRR (HREE
BINBERBHRE D ZRER DT

2016 2015

—E-ARF —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ABBT T

0 - 120 days 0ZE 120K 29,014 18,041
121 - 180 days 1212180 242 493
181 — 360 days 181E360K 1,079 3,116
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —FAEMFEURA 5,308 -
35,643 21,650

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
investigation or research on the creditworthiness of the
new customer and assesses the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. The trade
receivables which are neither past due nor impaired mainly
comprise the receivables due from state-owned and local
commercial banks with good reputation.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB6,387,000 (2015: RMB3,116,000) which have been
past due as at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment losses. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

EEMETAHEFFA  NEESRHENX
RN EPZEEMFEEAEREPZEEE
ENEERFP ZERBEE - KRB BI KRR
BZREBESEFRETEZBRRREEERY
Z BB R T A ERTT Z RYRK

BIERAEEERESERNAEET
BE#H AR®6,387,0000L (ZE—HF: A
R #3,116,0007T ) 2 F& W BR 30 I ¥R & HA
REEER - A S B & LR EEEREE -
PN YR i3 i w8 /NG S = K G B 7EE T
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e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_-ZF— N NF+-H=+—HIFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

16. BREZ R EMRR (&)

EEHBERREZERE SRR ZRED

impaired: i mNE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx AREFT
181 — 360 days 1812360K 1,079 3,116
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —FAEMFURA 5,308 -
6,387 3,116
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERESD
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
1 January —H—H 8,933 8,432
Impairment losses recognised on B R ERFIBEREEE
receivables - 1,962
Impairment losses reversed 28 O EEE (440) (1,461)
Amounts written off as uncollectible Hi6 88 A~ AT Ui [2] FRIE (6,835) -
31 December +=—A=+—H 1,658 8,933

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of approximately RMB1,658,000 (2015:
RMB8,933,000) of which the debtors were in financial
difficulties.

Trade and other receivables of approximately RMB55,000

(2015: RMB52,000) were denominated in United States
dollar ("US$").

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

REBELECERREZERE ZER
AR AR ¥1,658,0000 (ZE—RF:
AR #8,933,0007T) ' BB EH A LR
RN 2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

17.

18.

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

EE—NFEf = —HIFEE

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 17. BIEEBERE
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ANREFT ARMEF T
Investments in unlisted fund FELEMESEE 707 690

The unlisted fund is denominated in US$ and the
investment objective of the fund is to achieve capital
appreciation through investing in securities, ownership
interest and private equity investments offered publicly
or privately and in relation to energy and environmental
protection. Fair value of the investment reflected the fair
values of the underlying assets of the fund, which were
provided by the counterparty financial institution. The fair
value is measured at Level 3 fair value measurement (as
defined in note 29).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market saving
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to
0.35%) per annum during the year ended 31 December
2016.

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB21,000 and RMB2,649,000 (2015:
RMB20,000 and RMB1,179,000) were denominated in US$
and Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), respectively.

18.

FETESRETHE ESNRERE
BEBBREREREEREENAZ R
HERAk TARERIRLAREREER
BARHEE 4R B WA (B R R A FE S Bl
BRREESHBEEENARBE RAE
DRE=ZMAAREFERE(EERWE
29)FtE-

RITERRRE

HE-_Z—AF+_A=Z+—BILFEH
B AEECZRITEB KRS BIEFANIE
RITH IS 7 FFE M ZE0.01EE035E (=
T—AF:0.01EZE0352):;t B ZRITH
ﬁ;%o

NEEAEH ARE21,000T KO ARE
2,649,000 (= — A F : AR #20,000
TLAZETTEHE R AR 1,179,0007T A7E 7T
FE) 2 ETHRITEBRRB 2D RIEE
TR B TTET A
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZF

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20.

—NEFEFZA=+—HIFE

19. BN E 5 R EMER

2016 2015

—E-RE — R

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥Fx AREFT

Trade payables BITE FERR 4,291 4,078
Deposits received from customers Bl EFPZE 87 358
Payroll payables JRE {1 B T %7 B 1,471 1,541
Other payables and accruals H b e BR R 7,131 4,313
Total ait 12,980 10,290

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of

trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

%IJ%“ZEEQW'

2016 2015
— R —HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Within 90 days 90K AN 2,202 1,965
91 - 180 days 91£180K 757 509
181 — 365 days 181E 365K 542 847
Over 365 days 365KLA E 790 757
4,291 4,078

Trade and other payables of approximately RMB806,000 ERE 5 R EMERRL AR %806,0007T

(2015: RMB70,000) were denominated in HK$.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

—RF: AR¥70,0007T) JHIRE T

s

20. BN ESHE

u/<T A

%“é/lfék

TLRHE REER 2B HEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

21. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING 21. ENEEEZERQABFRIE
COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFT
Amount due to immediate holding JERf—REEZERAA
company, Goldcorp Industrial Limited Goldcorp Industrial
Limited ) 5K I8 12 11
The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non- ZRENAETTIHE  AEKE - 28 AET
interest bearing and repayable on demand. BREE-
22. BORROWINGS 22. B8
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARBEFT
Unsecured loans from a director (Note /) EEMEEEE (f1:7#i) 50,090 43,164
Unsecured bank borrowing (Note i) EIRIRITEE (Wati) 5,992 5,436
56,082 48,600
Carrying amount of the above FTHMEESNREERET
borrowings are repayable: B
Within one year —F IR 4,444 13,010
Within a period of more than one year —FAEETBBERE
but not exceeding two years 4,026 6,217
Within a period of more than two years FF A F{EREBiBRE
but not exceeding five years 17,476 10,653
Within a period of more than five years ~ AF L E 30,136 18,720
56,082 48,600
Less: Amounts due within one year BAARBEBER—FA
shown under current liabilities EIHA 2 3k78 (4,444) (10,179)
Amounts shown under non-current FIAERB B & 2 FIE
liabilities 51,638 38,421
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e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - FE—NFE+_-A=4+—HIFFE

22. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

2. 188 (#&)

Notes: BiEt
() The exposure of the Group's loans from a director and the () AEEEZREHEFROEREEHZIBHBMNT
contractual maturity dates are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-AF —E—HF
RMB$’000 RMB$ 000
AR¥ T AREFT
Within one year 1R - 9,567
Between one to two years 1224 3,582 5,773
Between two to five years 2E54 16,372 9,325
More than five years 5 1% 30,136 18,499
50,090 43,164
During the year, the repayment term and interest of certain loans FR ARAREEZRFNHABR HETE

have been revised pursuant to the supplementary agreements signed

between the Company and the director.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) on the Group's loans from a directors are as AR :

follows:

AR SRR R A SETT T 18R] -

AEBESERNERMNXGEE (LASRN

E

2016 2015
—NE —E-RHF

Effective interest rate: BRI
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 3.25%-3.5% 0%-3.5%

The weighted average effective interest rate on director borrowings is

3.27% (2015: 2.66%) per annum.

T—HF:266E)-

BEERZMETHERNEXAEFI27E (=

(i) The exposure of the Group's bank borrowings and the contractual (i) AEERTEENRREAHIHA (KER
maturity dates (or reset dates) are as follows: H)mT:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—-AF
RMBS$ 000 RMB$ 000
AR¥FT AREFT
Fixed-rate bank borrowings: EERITEE
Within one year 157 4,000 3,000
Variable-rate bank borrowings: FRIRITEE:
Within one year 15K 444 444
Between one to two years 18225 444 444
Between two to five years 2&E55F 1,104 1,548
1,992 2,436

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

22. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 22.18E& (&)
Notes: (Cont’d) KiaF: (48)
@iy (Cont'd) (i (&)
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted AEBRITEENERNE (b EERE RF
interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows: )T
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hEF
Effective interest rate: B =
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 4.82% 4.82%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 5.63% 5.63%
The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank borrowings RITIEEZ METHERFERTF6OIE (=
is 6.01% (2015: 5.81%) per annum. T—RF:581F) -
The loans from a director of approximately RMB43,900,000 (2015: FEEEHARMKEA3,900,000 T (ZE—FHE:
RMB36,974,000) are denominated in HK$, other borrowings are #) AR ¥36,974,00000) LAB LA E - HMEE
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group TS EER G EBE
entity.
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. R
Number of shares Amount
RAEE nE
2016 2015 2016 2015
“g-A§  -T-5E  ZB-AF  -T-54
‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T iR AREFT  ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBOETZZER
Authorised: AT
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRTZA=+-H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRAR:
At 1 January R—A—H 864,430 840,730 8,551 8,360
Exercise of share options TR - 23,700 - 191
At 31 December R+ZA=1+—H 864,430 864,430 8,551 8,551
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date and have come to its expiration. All other respects of
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Scheme prior to
such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until expiry
of the said options. As a result, a new share option
scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry
of the Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are
same with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 February 2011 (the “"SGM"), the
New Scheme mandate limit was refreshed so that the
Company was authorised to grant share options under
the New Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the SGM.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRe B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

24. LR BEBR N KRS

RATzREGEBRES

ApmlzElEsE (%A R-F
E-FN\A-TLERK TBEENAR
BEFLAERER YEOR_FT——F
NAZ+EBE® REZXTE AQF]
ExgnmAERREER (BRARR A
MEBARZER) RLBRE UARBAL
Bl - FAT BRI E BRAR REI+
FHORER -ZetBRX 2B HEMT
ESEEEHAN REZAER L ZAHR
ERREZFERARZREMA  RIEZ
AHEIZ G BEBAEITERETERZ
AR BEEFABRERHE ®R=
E-——F A=+ N\ACEHENFTE
(T#hEt&1)) - A8 &M1& 32 B0 A 2o #
8z T B2 E L EMER -

REREA-_Z—F A -+ N\NBET
ZARRBRRENARE ([BREFIAE])
BB ERRRR Frrdl 2 RERE
EEH SARNRERERENTIRDY
AR TR &% 5 81,184,000/ I
M AR RRBRRFR RS B EE 81T
BEA4910% ©
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24.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 May 2016 (the "AGM"), the
scheme mandate limit under the share option scheme of
the Company was refreshed again so that the Company
was authorized to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the
refreshed mandate limit, representing approximately 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the AGM. The aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options that may be
granted under the refreshed mandate limit and upon the
exercise of the outstanding options previously granted is
not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares in issue at any
point of time.

At 31 December 2016, the number of ordinary shares in
respect of which options had been granted on 9 October
2007 (“2007 Option”), 19 January 2010 (“2010 January
Option”), 16 August 2010 (“2010 August Option”), 28
February 2011 (“2011 February Option”), 24 June 2013
("2013 June Option”) and 15 May 2015 (“2015 May
Option”) and remained outstanding is 130,230,000 (2015:
136,730,000), representing 15.1% of the total ordinary
shares of the Company (2015: 15.8% of the total ordinary
shares) in issue at the end of the reporting period.

EE—NFEf = —HIFEE

24. LR BERNRRS (&)

FRRREEHEBRESSS (&)

>

BERER-_ZE—"FREA+—HETH
AAEREEF RS ([REBAFAE]) £
BAMTBEBAZR ARQRBEREETH
ATERBELREEEN  AQRREALER
R EEINERE AT RIREENEEL
[R 32 8% & +£86,443,0000% & 15 - (5 AR R
BFERXEABHARRBEEHITRALI0%
ETERIBLEEINIZE LR AUEREAM
EEREMATERER MM AITER
B T P RE R TT RO IR D B BTN S B B 1]
FRFEBE TR H M30% o

RZBE—-—RNE+_A=+—H0 #BE#E
R-_ZEELE+ANB([ZEELEE
RiEl) - —ZT—ZF—A+NB([=Z

—ZF-—ABERE]) ZE—-ZFF)N\A
+REB(ZE—ZFEFNABERE]) =
T——F A=+ N NB(ZZ—%=
AEkE]) —ET—=F~A=+HA
([ZE2—=F AEkE]R=_FT—hF
FA+RBE([ZE—RFHRABERE])
BREBMRTEz2ERE PR 2EB
A% 8 B 4A130,230,00000 ( — = — R4
136,730,000 ) A AR MEHRKRE
BITEBERAHEZ151% (ZZ—FF(h
BITEBRBE 215.8%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - FE—NFE+_-A=4+—HIFFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 24.
(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Options shall be exercised in the following manner:

Options granted to directors and employees on 9

October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010

e 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon
6-months of the date of grant

e Additional 10% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of
grant

e Additional 35% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date
of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of
grant

Options granted to director on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 9 January 2012

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011
e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 12 January 2012

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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FRRZRELHBRESTE ()

BB RIZIA T AT
R-FELF+ANA —F—FF—F
TAAR=-FE-—FFNNATANARTFEF
RIESHIERE

o S%UEREENRELBHAMEAE
Al FI7fE

o HIMO%HWEREANKRLAH A
FRATITE

o RIN5%HFEREANK L A WA
FRAITITE

o HMT50%HMERBEANRKLARN=A
FRATITE

R-E——F_FA -+ ARTFEEZHE

B

o S50%ZHEMRMENIEE BEA FITE

o  FHINSONMEBREAN_-_T——F—
BANBER F171E

R-CE——F A=+ HBRFEEZE
B
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:3
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 2. UM AEBNRRS (&)
(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company KATRZREEEBRESE (£)
(Cont’d)
R-E—=Z¢EAA=—1HNAETEERE

Options granted to director and employees on 24

June 2013 BEZERE
e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o S0%ZERBANKEBHEN T
date of grant 5

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 23 June 2014

BAIN50% M B RE AR — T —MMF X
AZ+=R&"A F17{&

R-E-—LZFTATLZARTEERES

Options granted to director and employees on 15

May 2015 ZBRE

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o S0%ZERBANKEBHEN T
date of grant :d

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o  FEINSO%HEREENR _-_T—XRFH

exercisable after14 May 2016 A+MBRER®AI FI1{E

WEZFE R E 1TEEHARAE
FEEE EMEROARFRNRE L
BEAZWH{E - ()RR B L A EAT
FEAEER 2 FHEHE: KRR AR

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant, (ii) the

average closing price of the shares for the five business MZEBERZRESE -
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.
No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. MMz EREMSWEEN ZRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_-ZF— N NF+-H=+—HIFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 24. LR AERNRR S (&

(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company KATRZREEEBRESE (£)
(Cont’d)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: Bz BBEMNZFBERT
Options granted to directors and employees on 9 R —EE+LFLTANA —FE—FF—F
October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010 TAAR=FE—ZFNA+AARTEE
RESHEBRE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
Rl B
BRESR it B BEH (i e ZRAARE
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010 09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
“TTLEERE 09.10.2007 09.10.2007%08.10.2010 09.04.2008%08.10.2017 0.368% L 0.225378 7T
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330
“T-TE-ARERE  19.01.2010 19.01.2010%18.01.2013 19.07.2010%18.01.2020 0.200% 7 0.1330% 7
2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
“Z-ZF)\RERE  16.08.2010 16.08.2010£15.08.2013 16.02.2011%15.08.2020 0.840/ 1T 0.5289/ 1T

Option granted to directors and employees on 28

R-E——F_F-+/ARFEERE

February 2011 BEZERE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
RELAH
BRESR REAH HEH TES 88 ZARE
2011 February Option
“Z-—F-REkiE
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3308
RTEs 28.02.2011 TEm 28.02.2011%09.01.2021 07357 03308%7T
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 10 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3417
BTYES 28.02.2011 28.02.2011209.01.2012 10.01.2012£09.01.2021 0.7387 0.341757T
Grant to employees 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3366
HTEE 28.02.2011 TER 28.02.2011£12.01.2021 0.714% 7T 0.3366/5 ¢
Grant to employees 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3417
BTEE 28.02.2011 28.02.2011%12.01.2012 13.01.2012£12.01.2021 071487 034173 T
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e mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)
Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company KA
(Cont’d)

2-F—

Option granted to directors and employees on 24

AEFASF AR

24. R AERNRR G (&

R-IBE—=ZFNA-FHARTFEEZERE

AzREEHEBRESS (&)

June 2013 BEZHERE
Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

Rl B
BREER BREAH BES T e ZRAARE
2013 June Option
—E--ERAERE
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
KTE% 24.06.2013 TEA 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 012287t 0.0506/8 7T
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
BTES 24.06.2013 24.06.2013£23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0.1122% 7t 0052237t
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
RTEER 24.06.2013 TER 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 01228 0.0506/ 7T
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
KTEE 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0112287t 0.0522/87C

Option granted to directors and employees on 15

R-E-—LZFTATEARTEERES

May 2015 ZHERE
Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

Rl B
BRERR BREAH BES i e ZRfE
2015 May Option
“E-RERRAERE
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2648
RT&s 15.05.2015 T@Em 15.05.2015%14.05.2025 04387 0.26487 1T
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2694
KTE% 15.05.2015 15.05.2015514.05.2016 15.05.2016%14.05.2025 0.43% 7T 0.269475 ¢
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2243
RTEE 15.05.2015 TER 15.05.2015%14.05.2025 04387 0.2243% 7T
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2372
RTESE 15.05.2015 15.05.2015%14.05.2016 15.05.2016% 14.05.2025 04387 0237281
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_-ZF— N NF+-H=+—HIFE

(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the share

options during 2016:

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

2. LR AERNRR S (&

FRRZRELHBRESTE ()

TREBA-T—AF 2 BRER

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
at 1.1.2016 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2016
RZB-RF RZB-RE
-A-H +=ZA=Z+-8
Option type BRI i RAT REARH RERTHE REREHK REARZH i RAT
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors RTE%F

2010 January Option ] 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option —T——F-AEKRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option —E-=FXABERE 40 - - - - 40
2015 May Option “T-hAERAERE 1,900 - - - - 1,900
68,740 - - - - 68,740

Exercisable ARZT-RERTE
at the end of 2016 68,740

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option “ETLERERE 17,760 - - (1,850) - 15,910
2010 January Option “T-ZF-AEKRE 6,580 - - (700) - 5,880
2010 August Option “Z-SENARKRE 2,980 - - (620) - 2,360
2011 February Option —T——F-ABKRE 12,970 - - (680) - 12,290
2013 June Option —E-=EXABRE 8,200 - - (1,000) - 7,200
2015 May Option “T-RERAERE 19,500 - - (1,650) - 17,850
67,990 - - (6,500) - 61,490

Exercisable ARZT—RERTE

at the end of 2016

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

61,490
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the share

options during 2015:

EE—NFEf = —HIFEE

24. R AERNRR G (&

RKAT

>

ZRESHEBRESE (#F)

TREBN T AF 2 BRE2

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
1.1.2015 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2015
R-B-1%F R-B-1%
-A-H +=ZA=Z+-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERKHK REARFH i RATE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors KTE%F

2010 January Option —E-TF-ABRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option —E-—F-AEkE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option “E-ZERARKRE 4,040 - (4,000) - - 40
2015 May Option AR ABKE - 1,900 - - - 1,900
70,840 1,900 (4,000) - - 68,740

Exercisable ARZZ-RFRTE
at the end of 2015 67,790

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option DT FERE 18,850 - - (1,090) - 17,760
2010 January Option g F-RERE 11,170 - (3,250) (1,340) - 6,580
2010 August Option “T-ZEN\ABEKRE 2,980 - - - - 2,980
2011 February Option —E——E-ARERE 13,270 - - (300) - 12,970
2013 June Option R -ERAERE 25,850 - (16,450) (1,200) - 8,200
2015 May Option “ZT-AFERABKRE - 19,500 - - - 19,500
72,120 19,500 (19,700) (3,930 - 67,990

Exercisable ARZZ-RFETE
at the end of 2015 58,240
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share
options were granted. During the year ended 31
December 2015, the Company granted share options
to 25 eligible participants to subscribe for a total of
21,400,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company.

Options were priced using binomial option pricing model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m ARG

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

24 LR BERNRRS (&)

FRRZRELHBRESTE ()

B RNFt+_A=+—BHILFE
R U EREERE-BE_T—H
F+ZA=+—HIEFEHHA AQAM
WEEERSEATEREBRE URE
AR F LA A 21,400,000/ A
0.0 7T 2 37 &k

BEREODUA-_AABRETERATEE-
B Z@AEWT:

2015 May option
—E-IERABRE

Granted to Granted to

directors employees

R¥ES BFER

Share price & B HK$0.433& T HK$0.4358 7T
Exercise price 7B HK$0.4338 7t HK$0.437% 7T
Expected volatility T8 B @ 72.035% 72.035%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0.000% 0.000%
Sub-optimal factor REAF 2.8 2.2
Risk-free interest rate ER R F R 1.819% 1.819%

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised
standard deviations of the continuously compounded
rates of return of the share prices of the Company and
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation date.

In relation to the share options granted by the Company,
the Group recognised the total expense of approximately
RMB810,000 in cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses as well as administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB3,302,000)
according to the function of the grantees.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T

IR TIARIBEA N B N M A& EBEEB D
AR ARREERSRENFEES D
BENFHFRELEEFE

FEAARRRTHELRE FARERR
ETE-XRE+-_A=+HILFEHE
PR DERHEEERURERERT L
FIX 4B ANR#810,000T (— B — R4
AR #3,302,0007T) * & SEIREARAZ
BeeEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25. HE&IE
The Group as lessee AEEEREEA
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFTT ARETT

Minimum lease payments paid under FALEHEENTIE

operating leases during the year RSN 2,283 2,172
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERR AEBRBEEENEEME
commitments for future minimum lease payments under M AR Rz R EHERER B REMAS
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented N EBEHBHzAmT:

premises which fall due as follows:

2016 2015
—E-KF —T—-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FTxT ARBFT
Within one year —F KN 1,075 649
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF - 3
1,075 652
Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of one year HELENTEEAR—F (Z2—1%F:

(2015: one to two years). —EZF)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BHERXS

Apart from details of the balances with related parties BT ARG BRI TR 820 21 K228

disclosed in notes 20, 21 and 22 to the consolidated BEEE AR AEB R FERNETUAT
financial statements, the Group entered into the following BERTRS:

related party transactions during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel TEEEEAEMS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key AEBEERFTEERBEZKE MW
management during the year were as follows: e
2016 2015
—E-XRF —hf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ABBT T
Short-term employee benefits EHESRN 2,757 2,604
Retirement schemes contributions benefits i& K48 F 51 2| £ 3% 260 241
Equity-settled share-based payment i 45 B LA 10 A LR
expenses NN 434 1,776
3,451 4,621
Rental expenses HEMX
2016 2015
=B-AF —hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
Rentals paid to Sing Lee Pharmaceutical = 1< ¥7 ) 88 %536 ) O
Import & Export Co., Limited ERATHPAE
for lease of office premises BEUES 540 535
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had commitments RZE—RNEF+_A=+—H RTFE
of approximately RMB280,000 (2015: RMB256,000) for M—2ZEEARFABHEELORFRA

Al (BRI EENZERITAS0%ER
WHEBKFEZEGRE) HERREDE K
SEFIZTAIBUE Z & EHA  BILAE

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for the next year in respect of office
premises leasing with a related company, Sing Lee

Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., Limited, which Mr. HARREKERESHRT EEFREHARE
Hung Yung Lai has 50% equity interest with joint control. 280,000T (ZZE —HF: AR¥256,000

JT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

27.

28.

Annual Report 2016 —F— REE$§

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to
the MPF scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 which contribution is matched by
employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute 27%-28% of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to these schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

EE—NFEf = —HIFEE

27.

28.

RAIKER T E

AEBSMAEREANGERERER
BEMEAEEE KB CEERAE
B BE HARA LHEMANRESE
2o AREBERBHIERTESFBIMIEZH
AABBIEMKA ( LRAE30,000) 2
5% @ &8 2 KL R IRARR -

AEEETRZEBEERBTESHBITR
fFegrBRERRREBAEIZKE -
REBE AR AR 227 % E28% AR A
AEIERAMMERRREZES - ANEEY
AR BEEERFRFE ZHK

RATIMBEAR 2B

AEEMBRRNRE AR ZFITHIIW
.

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Proportion of Proportion of
establishment/ paid share capital/ voting power ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2016 and 2015 Principal activities
EMRL/ KL/ BRTRMRRER/ KARAREZ R20165F R
RAER EEEX AMER2F#E RERLA WISEREFIL TEER
2016 2015 Direct Indirect
“E-3f “T-1F EE B
Sing Lee Electronics (8.V.1.) Co., British Virgin Islands 715 shares of 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
Ltd. ("Singlee BVI")' US$1 each
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.1) Co., HBRLHE 75 EREE REER
Ltd. ("£7FIBVI *)! (E3pr4 3]
Singlee Software? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales of
US$4,325,500 software products, sales of
related hardware products and
provision of technical services
FiplEN i 4,325,500% ¢ RAMBEERER HERBE
HMER HER ARRERIRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-ZF—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

28. RABIMB AR 2B (&)

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Proportion of Proportion of
establishment/ paid share capital/ voting power ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2016 and 2015 Principal activities
HERAL/ R/ BRTRBRRE/ ARFREL 20165 %
RAER EEEX EMER2F#E RELA W155ERADL TEXH
2016 2015 Direct Indirect
—E-XF —T-1% HE B
Singlee Technology? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales of
US$6,714,000 software products, sales of
related hardware products and
provision of technical services
Ry i 6,714,000% T RENEERHER HEERE
EMER HER NREHEETRE
Beijing Singlee? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
RMB1,000,000
SR PE AKH1,000,00070 TEEX
Gl
Xin YinTong? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
RMB100,000,00
nEE i AR 100,000,000 TEEX
HMER

! Singlee BVI is a limited liability company incorporated in the British !
Virgin Islands.

2 Singlee Software and Beijing Singlee are wholly foreign owned 2
enterprises.

3 Singlee Technology and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign equity joint 3
ventures established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T
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NG

BB R BN AFERAFEEM
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 29. EXAERkeHEMREEB N RK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 5

(a) ExERER

(a) Capital risk management

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, loans from a director and bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, share premium,
accumulated losses and other reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

AEEERLARETRRAEEZ
ERANSEEE DERE(CAR
SV E IIINCT S PNE
e AFEER  ARE Y EER
SR

AEEBZEARBEEREBRITRE
EZEERBITHEBNAE RART
A AR (BR8EERA - B
B RetBEBEREMER)

EEEY¥F - RARDNERRE-ER
RNz —BN EEFEEEEARKAN
REERBIENAREZER AEE
HIRBEESZEZ BBIXARE
BITHBARBITHESSBELRE
BHERTFEHEERBEARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 2. EXrEkEermEREEBNRK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES R (#)
(Cont’d)
(b) Categories of financial instruments (b) SRITEMER
2016 2015
—E-KRF —E-0F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including Bk EWRFIE(BE
bank balances and cash) RITHEBREER) 62,399 44,364
Held for trading investments HIEEERE 707 690
63,106 45,054
Financial liabilities THERE
Amortised cost BESHAR 69,866 59,803
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () 2RAKEERNRBER
policies
The Group's financial instruments include trade and AEE EeRMIABEEKESRE
other receivables, held for trading investments, bank AR FIEEERE - RITEBR LR
balances and cash, amounts due to directors, amount  EBNEEZZE ENEEERA
due to immediate holding company, trade and other BIIE BN E 5 R EMERKUA KRG
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial BE-ZEeRMITAZHBREWER
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The BR-HEZEEMIARECRARE
risks associated with these financial instruments EmsRERE (FERE - EEERREE
include market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk wERRR) EERBREEBESR
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. wo BRI B ZERR 2 HEH
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set RTIX-BEEEBLERZERAR
out below. The management manages and monitors AR AER ARz AR ERE
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are 2

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 29. EXAERkemEMREEB N RK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES K(E)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)
Market risk 75 E B

() E¥ERE

(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and certain
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to directors,
amount due to immediate holding company
and borrowings of the Group are denominated
in US$ and HK$, currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group
entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange

AEBEBIIEHE BAKEYZ
ATREWHRIE RITEHRRER
T ENESREMER BN
BEEFR BNERZERIFMN
EREEAETRET (ZEFE
BIAGFHESEERZIES
¥ ) FHE - EARREAEEINE R
o NS B B B0 A 51 B B
HERE AT BEESERIN
PEEbe BDEREZBLEITEAN
SMNEE R IR

exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

RB|BEIRAINETENEEE

The carrying amount of the foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary ERE¥YaENEREEAENT
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RF ZZ-0F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE =L EE af
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEEFT ARETR ARETFT ANRETFT
us$ e 76 - 72 -
HK$ BT 2,649 45,755 1,179 37,957
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e M mAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(1)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2015: 5%) change in the RMB against
US$ and HK$. The 5% (2015: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period have been determined based on
the adjustment of translation of the monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number
indicates an increase (decrease) in the post-tax
profit where RMB strengthens against US$ and

BE-T—AEF-AS+—ALFE

2. EXEREErmEREEBNNEK

K (#&)

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

TEmE (Z)
() E¥mEbE (&)

TREFIAREHARE L LT
RETEXEB5% (ZF— 1
5% ) MY BUBE * 5% (= F
— 5% ) HERBR L)
FE 5 )2 T2 ] B 2 )RR B
BUBE L% - R B AR A
S5 0 9 1 L ) R ) 47 T
ENGERAREEERAGR
SMEFE EH5%E B (ZF— T
F15%) 2 BE 2 HB-E(R)
BRBRARSRETRBTHE
BHG B AT OHD) - A
R HEARBTEES% (—F
— 4 5% ) ISR BRI I

HK$. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of RMB AR AAE R E -
against US$ and HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.
2016 2015
=F-RF —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR FIT
Change in the post-tax profit — BR7% 14 % &1L
If RMB strengthens MAREHETHE
against US$ (3) (3)
If RMB strengthens MARM S B THE
against HK$ 1,832 1,563
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFEZE

2. EXERBREEREREEB N RK
R (&)

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) *REREEENREE (£)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEEE ()

(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) () EEg (&)
This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to D EZHRRERSHARART
outstanding foreign currency receivables, bank BETIB T INE R RTT
balances and cash, trade and other payables, EHnbEe ENESNEMEE
amounts due to directors, amount due to HENEEFRE ENEEE
immediate holding company and borrowings in I& 2 B RRIE R A B T 2 R B
US$ or HK$ at end of the reporting period. FEE o

(i) Interest rate risk management (i) FEE R EHE

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XEE$§

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate unsecured loans from
bank and a director (see note 22 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances (see note 18 for details) and variable
rate borrowings (see note 22 for details). The
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The directors consider that the interest rate risk
is insignificant, accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
were presented for both years.

AEBEASTERERMETR
ExEE (FRAFBER2HME
22)BB 2 ARENERAR -

AREEPAZ BT BRITER
(FFBRME18) KFRMEE (5
BRHF2) MRS RENER
o B IR E 0 BB E E 0
BEARMERE R -

EERA/MNXART TEKRH
MERGEZ2FIGRE DT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_-ZF— N NF+-H=+—HIFE

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2. EXEBREErmEREEBNNEK
K (E)

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) T EE (F)

(iii) Other price risk (i) B 1515 R S

AREBRIELETMESIKE MmAE
EABRER - REBERRE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unlisted funds. The

sensitivity analyses have been determined on the
exposure to the market price risks at the end of
reporting period. If the prices of the investments
in unlisted funds had been 5% higher or
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2016 would increase or decrease
by approximately RMB35,000 (2015: post-tax
profit would increase or decrease by RMB35,000)
respectively as a result of the changes in fair

HARMNTEERRBRETEKRE
S - MEEIFLTESEKRED
BEEASXTHRS% HE-Z
—RNE+_A=+—HLEFEH
RerMEeRFEERERERD
A EE B MG R AR
35,000 (ZFE—RAF & m
I M #8020 A A R #35,000
TT) °

value on financial assets classified as held-for-
trading.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - ZF—NF+_-HA=+—HIFFE

29. EXAEBEERRARE
R (&)

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK HEEHHRHK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERSEENREE (&)
policies (Cont’d)
Credit risk EEREE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's maximum R-_E—RNEF+-_A=+—8 K&
EREZXSYUFREBITEABEXNAE
B EEAIAMEYE 2 &N EERRIR
BRGETEARR KM REEERR
CREEZE@E-

exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets,
which is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Annual Report 2016 —F— REE$§

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made and services are provided
to customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial
strength of its customers as well as considering
prior dealing history with the customers. Generally,
customers are granted with credit periods from 120
— 180 days and the Group usually does not require
collaterals from its customers. An ageing analysis of
trade receivables is set out in note 16.

Management makes periodic individual assessment as
well as collective assessment on the recoverability of
trade receivables based on historical payment records,
the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the customers and whether there are any
trade disputes with them. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk of 77%
(2015: 48%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s top five largest customers in
relation to the provision of technical support services
business segment.
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29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are state-
owned banks and local commercial banks with good

reputation.

Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net
assets and net current assets of RMB3,258,000
and RMB45,569,000 respectively. Given the net
liabilities position in past few years, the directors of
the Company have given careful consideration to
the going concern of the Group and reviewed the
Group’s financial and liquidity position. With the
improved financial position and ongoing financial
support from a director, who is also the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, for a period
of twelve months from the date of approving the
consolidated financial statements by the directors,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient funds to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Cont’d)
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29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 2. EXEREemEREEEBNWREK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES R(E)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *tRERSEENREE (&)
policies (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) mEBELEE (&)
Liquidity risk table BB Z A
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
mig RERS AERES
Ti9F% —-FREER k" TEARE REE
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000
% ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANBETFT
2016 —E-XE
Trade and other payables ERESREME - 12,735 - 12,735 12,735
Amounts due to directors EREFHE - 1,037 - 1,037 1,037
Amount due to immediate R ERER A RFE
holding company - 12 - 12 12
Loans from a director EERER 3.27% - 66,397 66,397 50,090
Bank borrowing RITEE 6.01% 4,587 1,760 6,347 5,992
18,371 68,157 86,528 69,866
2015 —T-1F
Trade and other payables EHESREAMER - 10,290 - 10,290 10,290
Amounts due to directors ENESEHE - 902 - 902 902
Amount due to immediate EREEZERARRE
holding company 1 11 1
Loans from a director EZ[EE 2.66% 7,201 41,836 49,037 43,164
Bank borrowing FITEE 5.81% 3,684 2,338 6,022 5,436
22,088 44,174 66,262 59,803
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_-ZF— N NF+-H=+—HIFE

29. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 29. EXERkemEMREEB N RK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES K(#&)
(Cont’d)
(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (d SRIENAAEBEE

170

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on

the degree to which the fair values is observable.

TREHE&EMUARAAEFENT R
TEZAH YREARARENE
MABRZBEREE DRFEF—RE
E=fk-

2016
ZE-RE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-% E-R E=R CH
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFR AREFT AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL FRBBRRAABHNEREE
Held for trading investments BIEEERE - - 707 707
2015
“F-1F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-0 E_& EZH At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFIL ANEEFT ANBEFIL ANREFIL
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBRBROAABHNEREE
Held for trading investments BIEEERE - - 690 690

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the

current year.
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

Annual Report 2016 —&—

THE COMPANY

= B 5 8RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Bz T

T4 —=

NFEFZA=F—HILFE

30. AR B B AR O 3R

2016 2015
—xE —hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries & KA A 3,131 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B8~ R 3B 26,815 28,290
29,946 28,290
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments T8 YR IE 251 197
Held for trading investments FHIEEERE 707 690
Bank balances and cash SRITHEB MRS 2,580 1,110
3,538 1,997
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables E b e AR AR 741 9
Amounts due to directors BRI ESFIR 1,037 902
Amount due to immediate holding company & {5 B £ 15 i% 2 7] FUE 12 11
Borrowings BE - 2,895
1,790 3,817
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (ARE)F8E 1,748 (1,820)
Total assets less current liabilities REERABDEE 31,694 26,470
Non-current liability ERBEE
Borrowings BE 43,900 34,078
(12,206) (7,608)
Share capital (Note 23) BRAS (HfiE23) 8,551 8,551
Reserves (Note) s (A1) (20,757) (16,159)
(12,206) (7,608)

At 31 December 2016, the Company has net liabilities of
RMB12,206,000. The statement of financial position of the
Company has been prepared on going concern basis as the

controlling shareholder of the Company agreed to provide

financial support for the Company to settle its financial

obligations when they fall due.

NEFH

iy

NET_A=ZF+—HIEFE &

NAEREFEaE AR ARE12,206,0005T °

ARBH BN RIZRIFELEEER
2 ARARRABEBEERRAZRARAIR

H B 75 52 %5 8 38 1 B 75 R R B B RS O 3R

18 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-ZF—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. XX RIB R RE (&)

COMPANY (Cont’d)

Note: Bat -
Share
Share options Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R 13 35 (8 BREME 2B E A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBETFT ARETFT ARBTFT
At 1 January 2015 R-—E=—R&E—A—H 155,185 30,324 (199,834) (14,325)
Loss and total comprehensive expense RFEEEERERX A
for the year - - (7,339) (7,339)
Exercise of share options NEFITEE 7 AR 3,423 (1,220) - 2,203
Lapse of share options REF R B - (453) 453 -
Recognition of equity-settled R EEE ARG B
share-based payments EEA R - 3,302 - 3,302
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—HF
+=—A=+—8H 158,608 31,953 (206,720) (16,159)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBEREZEALEE
for the year - - (5,408) (5,408)
Lapse of share options A F R B - (1,291) 1,291 -
Recognition of equity-settled R EEE ARG B
share-based payments EAR - 810 - 810
At 31 December 2016 R-B—KREF
+=ZA=+—H 158,608 31,472 (210,837) (20,757)
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